o F o

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Daniel Torrez Martha Garcia Christine Lowery

Chairman 1 Vice Chairman 2" Vice Chairman
Ralph Lucero Robert Windhorst
Comimissioner Commissioner

Regular Commission Meeting
Thursday, September 28", 2023
5:00 p.m.

Cibola County Commission Chambers

Call to Order
Roll Call
Pledge of Allesiance

Prayer
Approval of Agenda

Public Comment

The Public has the opportunity to provide comment on any subject during the public comment period.
Speaker’s comments will be limited to three minutes unless the Board of County Commissioners requests
more information. The time limit is given in an effort to allow public input but also to move the agenda
forward in a prompt yet efficient manner.

Minutes
a. 08.18.2023 Special Commission Meeting
b. 08.24.2023 Regular Commission Meeting
c. 09.01.2023 Special Commission Meeting
d. 09.11.2023 Special Commission Meeting
e. 09.20.2023 Special Commission Meeting
Reports

a. Budget and Finance Report- Kate F letcher-County Manager & Paul Ludi-Finance Director

Presentation
a. Swearing In Ceremony For Deputies:
1. Tristan Howard
2. Miles Henry
3. ZaneCly
4. Tommy Allapowa
b. Rio San Jose Fiscal Agent Request

Page 1 of 2



10. New Business — Action May Be Taken

a. Consideration of IFB # 2024-001 County Road 5 Bridge Replacement General Contractor

b. Consideration of Resolution 2023-45 Internal County Procurement Policy

¢. Consideration of Intergovernmental Agreement Between Cibola County and Village of Milan For
Help with cost Associated with Operation of Milan Swimming Pool-$75,000

d. Consideration of Intergovernmental Agreement Between Cibola County and Village of Milan For
Rockin 66 Express Transit Program-$51,917

e. Consideration of Proclamation in Support of the New Mexico Nurse Practitioner Council Celebrating
National Nurse Practitioner Week (November 12-18, 2023) and the Valuable Contributions Nurse
Practitioners Make Every Day Serving the Citizens of New Mexico.

f. Consideration of requisitions over $20,000

a. Vehicle Radio Pkg w Repeater/Specialty Communications/Sheriff’s Office- $24,743.47

11. Executive Session
Motion and roll call vote to go into executive session and that, pursuant to New Mexico State Statute
Section 10-15-1, only the following matters will be discussed in closed session:

Pursuant to Section 10-15-1 (H) the following matters may be discussed in closed session:
a. Pending or threatened litigation 10-15-1 H) (7)

b. Real Property 10-15-1 (H) (8)
1. 515 W. High Street (Old County Complex), Grants NM 87020
c. Personnel 10-15-1 (H) (2)

d. other specific limited topics that are allowed or authorized under the stated statute;
Motion and Roll Call Vote to Return to Regular Session

Motion and Roll Call Vote that Matters Discussed In Closed Session Were Limited To Those Specified In
Motion For Closure, and That No Final Action Was Taken, As Per New Mexico Statutes Section §10-15-1.

12. New Business-Action May Be Taken
a. Direction to Staff Regarding 515 W. High Street Property

13. Announcements
a. Cibola County Offices Will Be Closed, Monday, October 9th, 2023, In Observation of Indigenous
People’s Day.
b. The Next Regular Commission Meeting will be on Thursday, October 26", 2023, at 5:00 p.m.

14. Adjournment

Page 2 of 2



/a. I\/Ilnutes

Minutes

08.18.2023

Special Commission
Meeting




Special Commission Meeting
Friday, August 18 2023
12:00 p.m.
Cibola County Commission Chambers

Elected Officials Present Staff

Daniel Torrez, Chairman Kate Fletcher, Manager
Christine Lowery, 2™ Vice Chairman Paul Ludi, Finance Director
Robert Windhorst, Commissioner Natalie Grine, Chief Deputy

Ralph Lucero, Commissioner

1. Call to Order
Chairman Torrez called the meeting to order at 12:00 pm.

2. Roll Call
Chairman Torrez does roll call, 1% Vice Chairman Garcia was absent.

3. Pledge of Allegiance
Led by Commissioner Lowery, recited by all.

4. Prayver
Led by Commissioner Windhorst.

5. Approval of Agenda

Motion to approve agenda made by Commissioner Lucero,
Second made by Commissioner Lowery, 4-0 affirmative.

6. New Business-Action May Be Taken
Consideration of RFP No. 2023-007 Annual Financial Audit Services.
Motion to Award RFP No. 2023-007 to Beasley Mitchell & Company made by
Commissioner Windhorst, second by Commissioner Lucero, 4-0 affirmative.

7. Announcements
The next Regular Commission Meeting will be held on August 24%, 2023, at 5:00 p.m.

8. Adj ournment
12:10 p.m.



PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED this 28", day of September 2023

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Daniel Torrez, Chairman

Martha Garcia, 15 Vice Chairman

Christine Lowery, 2" Vice Chairman

Robert Windhorst, Commissioner

Ralph Lucero, Commissioner

ATTEST:

Date:_

Michelle E. Dominguez, Cibola County Clerk

SEAL



Minutes

08.24.2023

Regular Commission
Meeting




Regular Commission Meeting
Thursday, August 24, 2023
5:00 p.m.
Cibola County Commission Chambers

Flected Officials Present Staff Kate Fletcher, Manager

Daniel Torrez Chairman Paul Ludi, Finance Director
Christine Lowery, 2nd Vice Chair Natalie Grine, Chief Deputy Clerk
Robert Windhorst, Commissioner Marie Grijalva, Rec & Filing

Ralph Lucero, Commissioner

1. Call to Oxder
Chairman Torrez called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm.

2. Roll Call
Chairman Torrez does roll call, Commissioner Garcia is absent.

3. Pledge of Allegiance
Led by Commissioner Lowery, recited by all.

4. Prayer
Led by Commissioner Windhorst.

5. Approval of Agenda
Motion to approve agenda made by Commissioner Windhorst.
Second made by Commissioner Lowery 4-0 affirmative.

6. Public Comment
Julie Junod requested to the Commissioners to please consider approving Resolution 2023-42, Utilization

of Constitutional Referendum Process.

Paul Spencer stated to the Commissioners that be would save his time to speak about Resolution 2023-
42 when the Resolution is presented.

State Representative Harry Garcia stated to the Commissioners that Commissioner Lucero has requested
for Highway Barriers for the Community of Cubero, Representative Garcia has received 200 ft of
Highway Barriers which were donated by NMDOT these barriers will be placed in Cubero.



7. Minutes
a. 07-24-2023 Regular Commissiong Meeting
Motion to approve Minutes for the 07/24/2023 Regular Commission Meeting made by
Commissioner Lowery; Second made by Commissioner Windhorst 4-0 affirmative.

8. Reports
a. Budget and Finance Report — Kate Fletcher — County Manager and Paul Ludi — Finance Director.

Report on File.

9. Presentation
a. DWI Presentation - Vicki Kramer

DWI Coordinator Vicki Kramer introduced her employees, Terry Harwood is the
Administrative Assistance, Hannah Windhorst is the Senior Compliance Officer, and Josh
Valverde is a Compliance Officer. Mrs. Kramer thanked her staff for doing an excellent job.
Mrs. Kramer also mentioned that her office is strictly funded through DFA, those funds are
used for Misdemeanor DWI compliance, DUT compliance and Domestic violations involving
alcohol. Manager Fletcher also wanted to thank Mrs. Kramer and her staff for doing an
excellent job.

10. Public Hearing
a. Ordinance 2023-01 Subdivision Claim of Exemption. An Ordinance Amending the Cibola

County Subdivision Ordinance 02-2015 in Order to Update Subdivision Claim of Exemption

Legal Requiremnents and Procedures.
Adren Nance gave the Commissioners a summary on why Amending Ordinance 02-2015 is
required.

11. New Business- Action May Be Taken

a. Approval of Ordinance 2023-01 Subdivision Claim of Exemption
Motion to approve item A. was made by Commissioner Lucero.
Second by Commissioner Windhorst 4-0 affirmative.

b. Consideration of Resolution 2023-43 FY24 Bar #1with Schedule 2023-43A
Motion to approve tem B. made by Commissioner Windhorst,
Second made by Commissioner Lowery 4-0 affirmative.

c. Consideration of DWI Advisory Board Bylaws
Motion to approve item C. made by Commissioner Windhorst.
Second made by Commissioner Lowery 4-0 affirmative.

d. Consideration of NWNM Council of Government Contract for Project Management for
Drainage Master Plan Project
Motion to approve item D. made by Commissioner Lucero.
Second made by Commissioner Lowery. 4-0 affirmative.



e. Consideration of Resolution for LGRF CO-OP Agreement:
1. Resolution 23-39 LGRF CO-OP Agreement -Control #L.600230 SBR
2. Resolution 23-40 LGRF CO-OP Agreement-Control #1.600228 CAPP
3. Resolution 23-41 LGRF CO-OP Agreement — Control #L.600223 SP
Motion to approve item E items 1,2, and 3made by Commissioner Windhorst.
Second made by Commissioner Lowery. 4-0 affirmative.

f. Consideration of Resolution 2023-42 Supporting Utilization of Constitutional Referendum
Process; Paul Spencer
Motion to approve Items, F Made by Commissioner Lucero.
Second by Commissioner Windhorst. With Commissioner Lowery voting No 3-1 affirmative.

g. Consideration of FY24 Capital Asset Inventory List
Motion to approve Item G Made by Commissioner Windhorst.
Second by Commissioner Lowery 4-0 affirmative.

h. Consideration of FY2024 Northwest New Mexico Council of Governments NWNMCOG)
Membership Agreement.
Motion to approve Jtem H made by Commissioner Windhorst.
Second by Commissioner Lowery 4-0 affirmative.

i. Consideration of USDA Animal and plant Health Inspection Service — Wildlife Services
Agreement.
Motion to approve Item I was made by Commissioner Lucero.
Second by Commissioner Lowery 4-0 affirmative.

j- Consideration of Requisitions over $20,000
a. 2 RAM 1500 SSV Pkg — Melloy Dodge / Sheriff’s Office ~ ARPA $86,896
b. 1 RAM 2500 Crew Pkg — Melloy Dodge / Sheriff’s Office — ARPA $53,127
¢. Maintenance of 3 HVAC units — Kirk Air Co. / Public Safety Building -
$23,441.84,
Motion to approve item J, items a, b, and ¢ made by Commissioner Lowery.
Second By Commissioner Lucero. 4-0 affirmative.

12. Executive Session

Motion and roll call vote to go into executive session and that, pursuant t¢ New Mexico State
Statute Section §10-15-1, only the following matters will be discussed in Closed session:

Pursuant to Section §10-15-1 (H) the following matters may be discussed in closed session:
a. Pending or threatened litigation §10-15-1 (HO (7).

b. Real Property §10-15-1 (H) (8).
1. Bluewater Community Center
c. Personnel §10-15-1 (H) (2).
d. Other specific limited topics that are aliowed or authorized under stated statute.

Motion made by Commissioner Lucero to go into Executive Session, at 6:01 p.m.
Second by Commissioner Lowery 4-0 affirmative.



Motion and Roll Call Vote to Return to Reoular Session

Motion and Rell Call Vote that Matters Discussed in Closed Session Were Limited to Those

Motion For Closure, and That No Final Action Was Taken, As Per New Mexico Statates Section
10-15-1.

Motion made to return to Regular Session was made by Commissioner Windhorst at 6:36 p.m.

Second by Commissioner Lucero 4-0 affirmative, and Motion for Closure and that No Action

was taken, made by Commissioner, Lowery, Second by Commissioner Lucero 4-0 affirmative.

13. New Business-Action Mav Be Taken
a. Consideration of Lease Agreement with Bluewater Water & Sanitation for the Bluewater
Community Center located on 4 Elm Street, Bluewater Village, NM 87005
Motion was made by Commissioner Lucero to Table Item A. Lease Agreement with Bluewater
Water & Sanitation for further review of the Lease Agreement, weather to pay for or not to pay
for.
Second by Commissioner Lowery 4-0 affirmative.

14. Announcements
a. The next Regular Commission Meeting will be on Thursday, September 28, 2023, at 5:00 P

b. Cibola County Offices Will Be Closed, Monday, September 4%, 2023, In Observance of the
Labor Day Holiday. '

15. Adjournment
Chaiman Torrez Adjourned the Meeting at 6:38 p.m.



PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED this 28", day of September 2023

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Daniel Torrez, Chairman

Martha Garcia, 1% Vice Chairman

Christine Lowery, 2™ Vice Chairman

Robert Windhorst, Commissioner

Ralph Lucero, Commissioner

ATTEST:

Date:

Michelle E. Dominguez, Cibola County Clerk

SEAL



/c. Minutes

Minutes

09.01.2023

Special Commission
Meeting




Special Commission Meeting
Friday, September 1%, 2023
12:00 p.m.

Cibola County Commission Chambers

Elected Officials Present Staff

Daniel Torrez, Chairman Kate Fletcher, Manager
Martha Garecia, 15 Vice Chairman Natalie Grine, Chief Deputy
Christine Lowery, 2" Vice Chairman

Robert Windhorst, Commissioner

Ralph Lucero, Commissioner

1. Call to Order
Chairman Torrez called the meeting to order at 12:00 pm.

2. Roll Cali
Chairman Torrez does roll all Commissioners were present with Commissioner Garcia by Phone

3. Pledge of Allegiance
Led by Commissioner Lowery, recited by all.

4. Praver
Led by Commissioner Lucero.

5. Approval of Agenda
Motion to approve agenda made by Commissioner Windhorst

Second made by Commissioner Lowery. 5-0 affirmative.

6. New Business-Action May Be Taken
Consideration of Requisitions over $20,000.00
1. HF Sinclair — Oils for chip seal on CR — 33 LATCF - $199,613.75

2. HF Sinclair — Oils for Chip seal on CR —48A —LATCF - $199,613.75

3. C&E Concrete — Chips for CR — 33 LATCF $281,811.78

4. C&E Concrete — Chips for CR ~48A — LATCF $281,811.78

5. Artesia Fire Equipment — Fire Hoses — Candy Kitchen VFD - $22,938.00
Motion to approve Requestions over $20,000.00 for Items 1-5 made by
Commissioner Lucero, second by Commissioner Lowery, 5-0 affirmative.

7. Announcements
The next Regular Commission Meeting will be held on Thursday September 28%, 2023, at 5:00 p.m.

8. Adjournment
12:07 p.m.



PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED this 28", day of September 2023

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Daniel Torrez, Chairman .

Martha Garcia, 1% Vice Chairman

Christine Lowery, 2" Vice Chairman

Robert Windhorst, Commissioner

Ralph Lucero, Commissioner

ATTEST:

Date:

Michelle E. Dominguez, Cibola County Clerk

SEAL



7d. Minutes

Minutes
09.11.2023

Special Commission
Meeting




Special Commission Meeting
Monday, September 11t 2023
2:00 p.m.

Cibola County Commission Chambers

Elected Officials Present Staff Kate Fletcher, Manager

Daniel Torrez, Chairman Paul Ludi, Finance Director
Martha Garcia, 1% Vice Chairman Natalie Grine, Chief Deputy Clerk
Christine Lowery, 2° Vice Chairman Sandy Ortiz, Chief Appraiser

Robert Windhorst, Commissioner
Ralph Lucero, Commissioner

1. Call to Order
Chairman Torrez called the meeting to order at 2:00 pm.

2. Roll Call
Chairman Torrez does roll call, all Commissioners are present, with Commissioner Windhorst arriving at

2:01 p.m.

L

. Pledge of Allegiance

Led by Commissioner Garcia, recited by all.

4. Prayer
Led by Commissioner Lowery.

Approval of Agenda
Motion to approve agenda made by Commissioner Lowery
Second made by Commissioner Garcia.5-0 affirmative.

W

6. New Business-Action Mat Be Taken
a. Consideration of Resolution 2023-44 An Order Setting Property Tax Rates for 2023
Property Tax Year Pursnant to NMSA 1978, Sections 7-37-7 (A), 7-37-7.1 (A) and
7-38-33 (A).
Motion to approve Resolution 2023-44 An Order Setting Property Tax Rates for 2023 Property
Tax Year, made by Commissioner Lucero, Second by Commissioner Lowery 5-0 affirmative.

9. Announcements
The next Reguiar Commission Meeting will be held on September 28%, 2023, at 5:00 p.m.

10. Adjournment
2:09 p.m.



PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED this 28", day of September 2023

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Daniel Torrez, Chairman

Martha Garcia, 1°* Vice Chairman

Christine Lowery, 2" Vice Chairman

Robert Windhorst, Commissioner

Ralph Lucero, Commissioner

ATTEST:

Date:

Michelle E. Dominguez, Cibola County Clerk

SEAL



/e. Minutes

Minutes
09.20.2023

Special Commission
Meeting




Special Commission Meeting
Monday, September 20t 2023
12:00 p.m.

Cibola County Commission Chambers

Elected Officials Present Staff Kate Fletcher, Manager
Daniel Torrez, Chairman Paul Ludi, Finance Director
Robert Windhorst, Commissioner Natalie Grine, Chief Deputy Clerk

Ralph Lucero, Commissioner

1. Call to Order
Chairman Torrez called the meeting to order at 12:00 pm.

2. Roll Call
Chairman Torrez does roll call, Commissioner Lowery, and Commissioner Garcia were absent.

3. Pledge of Allegiance
Led by Commissioner Lucero, recited by all.

4. Prayver
Led by Commissioner Windhorst,

5. Approval of Agenda

Motion to approve agenda made by Commissioner Windhorst
Second made by Commissioner Lucero.3-0 affirmative.

6. New Business-Action Mat Be Taken
a. Consideration of Resolution 2023-46 Opposing the New Mexico Governors Unilateral
Suspension of the Statutory & Constitutional Civil Rights of New Mexicans

Motion to approve Resolution 2023-46 Opposing the New Mexico Governors Unilateral
Suspension of the Statutory & Constitutional Civil Rights of New Mexicans
made by Commissioner Lucero, Second by Commissioner Windhorst 3-0 affirmative.

9. Announcements
The next Regular Commission Meeting will be held on September 28%, 2023, at 5:00 p-m.

10. Adjournment
12:09 p.m.

Page 1 of 2



PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED this 28%, day of September 2023

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Daniel Torrez, Chairman

Martha Garcia, 1% Vice Chairman

Christine Lowery, 2" Vice Chairman

Robert Windhorst, Commissioner

Ralph Lucero, Commissioner

ATTEST:

Date:

Michelle E. Dominguez, Cibola County Clerk

SEAL

Page 2 of 2



Budget and

Finance Report

As of August 31, 2023




PUBLIC COMMENT
PROCEDURES

We welcome your suggestions and want to hear you concerns;

If you would like to make a public comment, please fill out the
sign-up sheet located at the podium before meeting starts;

If you have sighed up for public comment, The Commission Chair
will call your name during the Public Comment Section of the
Agenda.

Please state your name for the record,
Public Comment is limited to 3 minutes;

This i1s not a question & answer period. The Commission is not able
to act on matters discussed; and

Thank-you!




NEW MEXICO -+ EST. 1981

Daniel Torrez, Chairman
Martha Garcia, 1st Vice-Chair

Christine Lowery, 2"9 Vice Chair
Robert Windhorst, Commissioner
Ralph Lucero, Commissioner

Kate Fletcher, County Manager

CIBOLA COUNTY
COMMISSION



Presenter
Presentation Notes
 Commission Meeting September 28, 2023


FInance
Report

This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-NC-ND


Presenter
Presentation Notes
Finance Report Cover Page


https://www.finsmes.com/2018/08/how-channel-finance-can-facilitate-the-supply-chain.html
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc-nd/3.0/

FINANCE UPDATES

Finance Reports & Budgets located on finance
department webpage.

County is reconciled through June 30, 2023 for the
Main Operating account and the Treasurer’s office Is
reconciled through June 30, 2023 for the Tax operating /
account.

Will start reporting on property taxes again when new
collections start.

Our Auditors came for 3 days. We worked diligent
with them and got them everything they needed so
far.



Presenter
Presentation Notes
 Cibola County Updates
Finance Reports & Budgets located on finance department webpage.
County is reconciled through July 31, 2023 for the Main Operating account and the Treasurer’s office is reconciled through August, 2023 for the Tax operating account. 
Will start reporting on property taxes again when new collections start.
Our Auditors came for 3 days and we got them everything they needed so far.


$1,550,000
$1,450,000
$1,350,000
$1,250,000
$1,150,000
$1,050,000
$950,000
$850,000
$750,000
$650,000
$550,000
$450,000
$350,000

July

August

September

October

November

December

January

February

March

April

May

June

2024 YTD Actuals

$643,909

$589,026

$1,404,025

=) (024 Projected Budget

$549,835

§549,835

$1,357,835

$549,835

$549,835

$549,835

$549,835

$549,835

$549,835

$549,835

$549,835

$549,835

2023 YTD Actuals

$536,444

$544,228

$1,296,630

$561,147

$494,626

$533,954

$543,038

$625,741

$536,941

5476,875

$523,283

$527,090

——2022 YTD Actuals

$375,851

$531,510

$1,540,013.

$614,259

$580,018

$674,226

$535,367

$559,873

$468,410

$501,653

$581,272

$520,659



Presenter
Presentation Notes
GRT Tracker
Here is our Gross Receipts history and the red line designates this fiscal year’s GRT up through September of 2023. We have updated our graph to now include the county equalization distribution which is now also represented on the RP 500 reports (shows GRT distribution amounts) that the NM Taxation and Revenue Department (TRD) create. TRD has changed their reports multiple times now and we want to represent those. The county Equalization was in the amount of $999,871 and is solely dedicated to be used to pay our revenue bonds each year. The rest of the regular GRT is divided up below in the breakdown.
Our budgeted projection is that bold straight yellow line. 
The other lines represent the last 2 years of actual GRT as you can see in the legend.
Our GRT is Broken Down by Increments and are dedicated by ordinance:
The Correctional GRT is dedicated to our inmate costs in the Detention Fund
The Environmental GRT pays the Northern New Mexico solid waste authority
The Hold Harmless is dedicated to paying our Series 2014A Bonds which built the detention center
The County Infrastructure is dedicated for general purposes in the general fund
The Fire Protection GRT is dedicated in our County Fire Protection Fund
Our County Share GRT is split to 3 funds. Our Indigent Fund, 2014 B Bond Fund, and general fund
The Special County Hospital GRT is a residual type of GRT from when hospital tax was enacted made up of the medical and food hold harmless tax distribution. When the tax increment deactivated the hold harmless portion stayed. It is used in our general fund
The County Emergency and Medical Services GRT is dedicated to our E-911 program in the consolidated dispatch fund.



5 Year Comparison of Net GRT including Contracts (Intercepts),
Compensating Tax, & Industry Tax
GRT After COVID

51,700,000
$1,600,000
$1,500,000
$1,400,000
51,300,000
$1,200,000
$1,100,000

$1,000,000

$900,000

$800,000

$700,000

$600,000

$500,000

$400,000

$300,000

$200,000

$100,000 K—,

S0

—Grants =—Cibola =——Milan —Linear (Grants) —Linear (Cibola) —Linear (Milan)


Presenter
Presentation Notes
GRT Tracker – All Entities
This slide is to show how the County’s GRT compares to our surrounding municipalities. We are all trending upwards according to the past 5 years of data although the City and County had low GRT distributions this month. As you can see, we have now added the County Equalization distribution into this graph also. To clarify, only counties receive this GRT equalization distribution and it is formula driven to assist smaller counties that don’t earn as much GRT as areas with higher populations. This distribution comes in September of every year. The tall spikes in the counties GRT represent this.


Cibola County Monthly Operating Cash Report - As of August 31, 2023

Beginning Cash Balance as

Beginning Investments

Ending Cash &

Active Funds of 7-1-2023 (Fund 614 is YTD ) YTD Revenues YTD Transfers YTD Expenditures YTD Adjustments Investments
101 - INVESTMENT FUND $0.00 $5,436,520.96 $22,654.65 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,459,175.61
401 - GENERAL FUND $8,562,611.58 $0.00 $662,950.67 ($33,800.96) ($1,162,611.97) ($2,806,372.93) $5,222,776.39
402 - ROAD $152,649.28 $0.00 $205,355.58 $0.00 ($313,345.31) $20,629.95 $65,289.50
403 - FARM & RANGE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($3,476.69) $0.00 ($3,476.69)
406 - INDIGENT $692,889.38 $0.00 $129,505.22 $0.00 ($6,925.19) $0.00 $815,469.41
407 - SAN RAFAEL VFD $255,329.45 $0.00 $110,832.00 $0.00 ($120,814.92) ($50.00) $245,296.53
408 - BLUEWATER VFD $89,784.17 $0.00 $68,042.00 ($25,251.00) ($1,249.90) ($420.00) $130,905.27
409 - LOBO CANYON VFD $295,777.14 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($115,948.64) $0.00 $179,828.50
413 - LAGUNA EMS $5,674.63 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,674.63
415 - PINEHILL EMS $1,546.22 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,546.22
416 - FENCE LAKE VFD $521,084.69 $0.00 $33,427.00 $0.00 ($560.65) ($259.34) $553,691.70
418 - CANDY KITCHEN VFD $341,301.63 $0.00 $86,495.00 ($37,531.00) ($16,797.28) $1,278.09 $374,746.44
419 - LAGUNA VFD $859,195.51 $0.00 $200,552.00 $0.00 ($3,257.83) $0.00 $1,056,489.68
424 - CUBERO VFD $172,179.27 $0.00 $56,909.00 ($13,541.00) ($655.24) $0.00 $214,892.03
425 - CUBERO EMS $2,249.64 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,249.64
427 - EL MORRO VFD $195,363.40 $0.00 $33,427.00 $0.00 ($2,578.17) $0.00 $226,212.23
428 - SUPERIOR AMBULANCE $1,766.53 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,766.53
429-CIBOLA ADMIN EMS $0.85 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.85
435 - CONSOLIDATED DISPATCH $194,548.33 $0.00 $239,354.59 $0.00 ($376,814.54) $33,265.18 $90,353.56
438 - DWI GRANT $56,841.28 $0.00 $21,666.60 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $78,507.88
439 - DWI DISTRIBUTION $143,059.42 $0.00 $11,538.00 $0.00 ($76,524.37) $0.00 $78,073.05
475 - COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION $1,208,050.12 $0.00 $42,707.01 $0.00 ($1,274.63) $0.00 $1,249,482.50
500 - CLERK RECORDING/FILING $97,714.69 $0.00 $6,984.00 $0.00 ($7,419.75) $0.00 $97,278.94
569 - 2014A BOND INCOME FUND $0.00 $0.00 $247,727.43 $0.00 ($10,484.73) $0.00 $237,242.70
570 - 2014B BOND INCOME FUND $0.00 $0.00 $194,257.89 $0.00 ($5,539.77) $0.00 $188,718.12
575 - NMFA LOANS $0.00 $377,669.77 $2,264.05 $127,093.96 $0.00 $0.00 $507,027.78
604 - FIRE MARSHAL $76,707.40 $0.00 $58,623.00 ($16,970.00) ($24,874.67) $15,028.16 $108,513.89
605 - LAW ENFORCEMENT PROTECTION $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
606 - NMDOT LOCAL GOV. TRANS. GRANT $798,831.02 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($946.55) $0.00 $797,884.47
607 - QUARTZ HILL PROJECT $144,034.31 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $144,034.31
614 - DETENTION CENTER $0.00 $780,003.86 $1,036,811.55 $0.00 ($1,284,792.80) ($798,786.62) ($266,764.01)
620 - 1% REAPPRAISAL FUND $15,961.85 $0.00 $1,705.07 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $17,666.92
646 - LG ABATEMENT $0.00 $0.00 $15,826.71 $0.00 ($15,826.71) $0.00 $0.00
647 - LATCF GRANT $3,151,902.50 $0.00 $3,151,902.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,303,805.00
648 - TPF COUNTY ROAD GRANTS FUND $1,505,488.13 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($22,831.33) $0.00 $1,482,656.80
649 - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT $2,414,398.12 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($354,696.37) $55,923.01 $2,115,624.76
651 - CAPITAL OUTLAY PROJECTS $0.00 $0.00 $251,867.62 $0.00 ($2,123.75) $0.00 $249,743.87
TOTALS= $21,956,940.54 $6,594,194.59 $6,893,386.14 $0.00 ($3,932,371.76) ($3,479,764.50) $28,032,385.01



Presenter
Presentation Notes
August 31, 2023 – Monthly Finance Recap 
Here is our Gross Receipts history and the red line designates this fiscal year’s GRT up through September of 2023. We have updated our graph to now include the county equalization distribution which is now also represented on the RP 500 reports (shows GRT distribution amounts) that the NM Taxation and Revenue Department (TRD) create. TRD has changed their reports multiple times now and we want to represent those. The county Equalization was in the amount of $999,871 and is solely dedicated to be used to pay our revenue bonds each year. The rest of the regular GRT is divided up below in the breakdown.
Our budgeted projection is that bold straight yellow line. 
The other lines represent the last 2 years of actual GRT as you can see in the legend.
Our GRT is Broken Down by Increments and are dedicated by ordinance:
The Correctional GRT is dedicated to our inmate costs in the Detention Fund
The Environmental GRT pays the Northern New Mexico solid waste authority
The Hold Harmless is dedicated to paying our Series 2014A Bonds which built the detention center
The County Infrastructure is dedicated for general purposes in the general fund
The Fire Protection GRT is dedicated in our County Fire Protection Fund
Our County Share GRT is split to 3 funds. Our Indigent Fund, 2014 B Bond Fund, and general fund
The Special County Hospital GRT is a residual type of GRT from when hospital tax was enacted made up of the medical and food hold harmless tax distribution. When the tax increment deactivated the hold harmless portion stayed. It is used in our general fund
The County Emergency and Medical Services GRT is dedicated to our E-911 program in the consolidated dispatch fund.


MONTHLY QUESTION

Who collects, processes and distributes the Gross Receipts Tax (GRT) that
local governments receive?

The County
The New Mexico Taxation and Revenue Department (TRD)

The New Mexico State Auditor (OSA)
The Department of Finance and Administration (DFA) /

ANSWER IS — B — GRT’s are collected by TRD. Every Municipality and County
set their own independent rates by ordinance through TRD. The state

collects, processes and distributes the GRT owed to each autonomous
local/quasi government (County, Municipality, Tribe, TIDD, NMFA, or NM
Youth Conservation Corp).



Presenter
Presentation Notes
Monthly Question
Who collects, processes and distributes the Gross Receipts Tax (GRT) that local governments receive?
The County
The New Mexico Taxation and Revenue Department (TRD)
The New Mexico State Auditor (OSA)
The Department of Finance and Administration (DFA)
ANSWER IS – B – GRT’s are collected at the state level at TRD. Every Municipality and County set their own independent rates by ordinance through TRD. The state collects, processes and distributes the GRT owed to each autonomous local/quasi government (County, Municipality, Tribe, TIDD, NMFA, or NM Youth Conservation Corp).






Slide Outline and Notes of Cibola County Finance Report

From July 1, 2023 through August 31, 2023 Finance Report

Commission Meeting September 28, 2023

Finance Report Cover Page

Cibola County Updates

Finance Reports & Budgets located on finance department webpage.

County is reconciled through July 31, 2023 for the Main Operating account and the Treasurer’s office is
reconciled through August, 2023 for the Tax operating account.

Will start reporting on property taxes again when new collections start.
Our Auditors came for 3 days and we got them everything they needed so far.
GRT Tracker

Here is our Gross Receipts history and the red line designates this fiscal year’s GRT up through September of
2023. We have updated our graph to now include the county equalization distribution which is now also
represented on the RP 500 reports (shows GRT distribution amounts) that the NM Taxation and Revenue
Department (TRD) create. TRD has changed their reports multiple times now and we want to represent
those. The county Equalization was in the amount of $999,871 and is solely dedicated to be used to pay our
revenue bonds each year. The rest of the regular GRT is divided up below in the breakdown.

Our budgeted projection is that bold straight yellow line.
The other lines represent the last 2 years of actual GRT as you can see in the legend.

Our GRT is Broken Down by Increments and are dedicated by ordinance:

The Correctional GRT is dedicated to our inmate costs in the Detention Fund

The Environmental GRT pays the Northern New Mexico solid waste authority

The Hold Harmless is dedicated to paying our Series 2014A Bonds which built the detention center
The County Infrastructure is dedicated for general purposes in the general fund

The Fire Protection GRT is dedicated in our County Fire Protection Fund

Our County Share GRT is split to 3 funds. Our Indigent Fund, 2014 B Bond Fund, and general fund

The Special County Hospital GRT is a residual type of GRT from when hospital tax was enacted made up of
the medical and food hold harmless tax distribution. When the tax increment deactivated the hold harmless
portion stayed. It is used in our general fund

The County Emergency and Medical Services GRT is dedicated to our E-911 program in the consolidated
dispatch fund.



GRT Tracker — All Entities

This slide is to show how the County’s GRT compares to our surrounding municipalities. We are all trending
upwards according to the past 5 years of data although the City and County had low GRT distributions this
month. As you can see, we have now added the County Equalization distribution into this graph also. To
clarify, only counties receive this GRT equalization distribution and it is formula driven to assist smaller
counties that don’t earn as much GRT as areas with higher populations. The tall spikes in the counties GRT
represent this.

August 31, 2023 — Monthly Finance Recap

Here is our August 31, 2023 monthly financial report. As you can see, we are maintaining our investments
and required reserves. We keep all our bond and state reserves in our investment fund, so we are not
dipping into them. Our general fund is in great shape still after resolving our reconciliation finding, and we
are strong with operating cash to support our recurring expenditures.

Our transfers equal zero which is mandatory.

The deficit in the farm and range is due to the timing of cash flows. This fund is also supplemented by the
general fund. This deficit will be fixed by our first quarter report to the state.

The deficit in the detention is also due to the timing of cash flows and this fund is also supplemented by the
general fund. This deficit will be fixed by our first quarter report to the state as well.

This recap is developed using three reports:

The pooled cash report gives what our beginning and ending cash balances should be. This should be
reconciled top your bank statements every month.

The Detail Vs. Budget report gives the revenue, transfer, and expenditure activity.

The balance sheets give us our adjustments to get from pooled cash to pooled cash and gives us our
investments. This should also reconcile to your bank statements.

The county is in great fiscal shape and is following GAAP, GASB, and all state laws and requirements.
Monthly Question
Who collects, processes and distributes the Gross Receipts Tax (GRT) that local governments receive?

A. The County

B. The New Mexico Taxation and Revenue Department (TRD)
C. The New Mexico State Auditor (OSA)

D. The Department of Finance and Administration (DFA)

ANSWER IS — B — GRT’s are collected at the state level at TRD. Every Municipality and County set their own
independent rates by ordinance through TRD. The state collects, processes and distributes the GRT owed
to each autonomous local/quasi government (County, Municipality, Tribe, TIDD, NMFA, or NM Youth
Conservation Corp).

The End — Questions from governing body



Sheriff Dept.

Swearing In Ceremony for (4) Deputies

NO BACK UP




Ob. Presentations

Rio San Jose

Fiscal Agent Request




DocuSign Envelope [D: 9DDFBEB3-9898-47F9-B0C4-015300533F 15

CUé)DY
McCARTHY

A Limited Liability Partnership

M-KiREN KILGORE
SANDRA JW BRINCK
PATRICIL S4LAZAR IVES
A44RON J, WoOLF
REBECCA DEMPSEY

JULIE 4. WITTENBERGER
CHARLES V. GARCIA
CAROL 8. HELMS

K. STEPHEN RoYoE
JULIE S. RIVERS
HEATHER TRAVIS BOONE
Scorr P. FaTCHRE

RoBEiT 4. CORCHINE
LAURA M. CASTILLE
CaRLOSJ. PanlrLa
CARLIM - -MARSHALL
CARL J. WALDHART
SCoOTT 4- BECKMNAN

qqqqqqqq

OF COUNSEL:

FOHN F. MfcCARTHY, JR-

John F. RENNEDY

JACQUEL YN ARCHULETA-STAZRLIN
ALEXIS SHANNEZ DUDELCZ YR

ScorT B TURNER MARGARET 4. LORENZ

REPLY TO SaNTa PE QFFICE

September 21, 2023

Cibola County Board of Commissioners
c/o Kate Fletcher, Cibola County Manager

kate fietcher@co.cibola.nm.us

Re:  Request that County act as Fiscal Agent for Acequias of the Rio San José
Dear Commissioners:

Along with Boynton Law Office of Milan, New Mexico, I represent the Association of
Community Ditches of Rio San José and its nine member Acequias and Community Ditches
listed at the end of this letter (“Acequias™). The nine Acequias collectively have approximately
500 individual water right owners. For the past 20+ years, the Acequias have been engaged in
litigation in the New Mexico 13% Judicial District Court to determine the water rights of the
Pueblos of Acoma and Laguna. In May, 2022, the parties reached a Local Settlement Agreement
with the Pueblos, the State of New Mexico, City of Grants and Village of Milan. As part of the
Settlement Agreement, the State of New Mexico agreed to provide certain funds to the Acequias
to improve their infrastructure so as to increase their water supply and efficiency. The first step
is an initial fund of $250,000 provided by the Interstate Stream Commission (“ISC”) for a
Hydrologic Needs Assessment (“HNA™) to determine the most cost effective and productive
water projects for each of the nine Acequias. The HNA will require a survey by a qualified
hydrologist of the surface and groundwater sources available in the Rio San José Basin, the
existing and historic sources and amounts of water utilized by each of the Acequias, the present
state of each Acequias’ diversion and distribution infrastructure, additional water sources that
could be accessed by each Acequia, and the potential projects that can be implemented.

The ISC will contract with the Acequias for disbursement of the funds which must be
expended in accordance with the New Mexico Procurement Code that requires the Acequias to
engage a chief procurement officer. Although the Acequias are political subdivisions of the
State and constitute local public bodies under the Procurement Code, they do not have access
internally to financial or accounting expertise or experience in navigating the requirements of the
Procurement Code. The Acequias would like Cibola County to act as their fiscal agent for
expenditure of the $250,000 for the HNA. We anticipate that the HNA will involve issuance of
one request for proposal for professional hydrologic services. As legal counsel for the Acequias,
Bruce Boynton and T, along with the Acequia representatives, would work with the County

201 THIRD STREET, NJ¥., SUITE 1300
ALBUQUERQUE, NEH MEXICO 87102
TEL 505-888-1335; FAX 888-977-3816

1701 OLD PECOS TRAI, POST OFFICE BOX 2160 506 Main Street, Suzte 103C
SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87502-4160 Las Cruces, News Mexico 88001
TEL 505-988-1476; FAX 888-977-3814 THL 505-088-4476; FIL 838-977-8812

rdempsey@euddymecartipy.com



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 9DDFBES3-9898-47F3-B0C4-015390533F 15

CU(%)DY
McCARTHY

A Limired Liability Partnership . ..
Cibola County Board of Commissioners

¢/o Kate Fletcher
September 21, 2023

Page 2

Manager and financial personnel as necessary to correctly comply with the provisions of the
Procurement Code. Although nothing about the Procurement Code is simple, we hope that this
procurement will be straightforward and uncomplicated. We are prepared to work closely with
your County financial staff on all aspects of the process and hope you will favorably consider our
request.

Thank you.

DacuSigned by:

1379773 DLWFSU/I

ECBESE47R44342F ..

REBECCA DEMPSEY

cc: Bruce Boynton, Esq.
Leon and Beverly Tafoya, Acequia Liasons

List of member Acequias and Community Ditches of the Association of Community Ditches of
Rio San José:

1. Bluewater Toltec Irrigation District

2. La Acequia Madre del Ojo del Gallo

3. Moquino Water Users Association II

4. Murray Acres Irrigation Association

5. San Mateo Acequia Association

6. Seboyeta Community Irrigation Association
7. Cubero Acequia Association

8. Cebolletita Acequia Association

9. San Jose De La Cienega Acequia Association



10a. New Busmess

IFB# 2024-0001

CR-5 Bridge Replacement General Contractor




Resolution 23-45

Internal County Procurement Policy




1.
2.
3.
4,
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

Cibola County
Resolution 2023-45
Procurement Policy

TABLE OF CONTENTS

IS0 o3 SSP 2
AULhOFItY AN REFEIENCES.......iiuieiei ettt e be e st e st e sreeteebesreane s 2
ODJECTIVE ...t bbbt b bbbt b bbb bbb e n s 2
1= T o] S SSR 2
ApPlication Of PrOCUIEMENT LAW ........ccviieiiiiiiieieriese e 3
Centralization of ProCuremMent ACHIVILY ........cccooveiiiieiiisisise e 3
INSPEeCtion Of PUDIIC RECOITS ......oviiiiiiiieice et 3
Do) P TN 100 L (SO PR 3
INdemNification AN INSUFANCE ......c.veieeiiieie ettt st se et ese e s e seesreeseeneesneas 3
Y= =101 1Y USSP SRR 4
Exemptions from Procurement through the COE.........cccevieiiiiiiic i 4
Application — Competitive Sealed BidS ..........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiee e 4
MUIEI-STEP SEAIEU BIAS ......ecveeiiiieiisieeieee e 11
PaymeENts fOr PUICHASES. .......cviiiiciee sttt sttt et e b e s re e sbeereenns 11
Application — Competitive Sealed PropoSals ...........coviiiiiiieieieinesenese s 11
APPLCAtion — SMAll PUICNASES........ccieiieiiceeie sttt sttt sr et sreere et 16
Application — SOIe SOUICE PrOCUIEMENTS......ccuiiieiiiriiecie et sre e e et st sre e restesbe e e sresreenbenrens 17
Application — EMErgency PrOCUrEMENTS.........oiiieriiieieieisie et 18
Procurement under Existing Contracts AULNOIIZEd............ccoeiiiiiieniicc e 19
Cancellation of Solicitations or Rejection of Bids or Proposals ..........c.cccccvvevieveiecieiie s 20
Rejection of Individual Bids O PropoSals...........cccieiiiiiieie ittt nas 20
Receipt, Inspection, Acceptance or Rejection of DeliVEries ..o 21
Responsibility of Bidders and OFferors..........covoiiiiiiie it s 22
APPIICADIIITY — PrOTESTS ... et 23
Procurement OVEISIGNT.......c..oiiiiieieite ettt 26
. Performance and Payment BONGS .........ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt st s sr e e neenas 26
NONAISCIIMINALION ......ecteetiese ettt e st e st et e e s aesaesbeeseebetesesteeseeseeereanen 26
Restrictions and CertifiCatioNS ..........cocviieiiiieee e ene 26
Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Contracts...........ccocveveverenenenieseseenenns 27
Non-Expendable SUPPIIeS and PrOPEITY .....c..ooviiiiiiieiirese e 27
Sale Or Lease Of REAI PTOPEITY .......ciiiiieieiiisiese ettt et et 27
RECOIS RELENTION ... .ecvie ettt e et e te e et e s teesaestesaesaeeneenaesrenne s 27
Personal UsSe ProNIDITEd ..........ccoiviiiiicic ettt sttt et sne e 27
INEEIPIETALIONS ...ttt b bbbt b e bbb b e 27
Use of Confidential Information Prohibited..............coco i 27
PENAITIES ...ttt ettt ettt te ettt e R e reereeRe e teeteenten b e nreeraentenreenes 28

(@0 11se: o LY 15 1S - PR 28



11

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.
41
4.2

421

4.2.2

423

4.2.4

PROCUREMENT POLICY

SCOPE. This policy pertains to all procurement initiated by or on behalf of Cibola County
(County), including those initiated by its volunteer fire districts or grantees, when there is a use of
public monies involved. All entities involved in procuring items of tangible personal property,
services or construction shall adhere to attendant federal and state laws and regulations including
applicable OMB circulars; and County policies.

Administration. The responsibility for administration of the provisions of this policy shall be under
the County Manager. The Purchasing Agent is the individual and office designated by the County
Manager to fulfill the responsibility and functions of a central purchasing office. The Purchasing
Agent shall have the responsibility and authority to insure that all provisions of law and this policy
are adhered to through the procurement process established by the County.

AUTHORITY AND REFERENCES. The state Procurement Code (Code), sections 13-1-28
through 13-1-199 NMSA 1978, and applicable OMB circulars, federal, state and laws, regulations,
and guidelines and County policy.

OBJECTIVE.
The purpose of the Code and this policy are to provide for the fair and equitable treatment of all
persons involved in public procurement, to maximize the purchasing value of public monies and
to provide safeguards for maintaining a procurement system of quality and integrity.
The County must comply with any requirement imposed by federal and state law and regulations,
County policy, and the terms of the federally funded grants. Compliance with the standards
promulgated in the OMB circulars and the Code and this policy that governs procurement will
ensure that procurement practices are acceptable.
The objective of this policy is to have the force and effect of law to implement, interpret or make
policy specific as it applies to federal procurement law and the Code, and the purposes stated
therein.

DEFINITIONS.
Most of the terms that appear in this policy are defined in the Code.

In this policy the following definitions also apply:

"Procurement manager" means the person or designee authorized by the County Manager to
manage procurement requiring the evaluation of competitive sealed proposals.

"Determination” means the written documentation of a decision of a Purchasing Agent including
findings of fact to support a decision. A determination becomes part of the procurement file to
which it pertains.

“User agency” means any of the County departments or entities providing services on behalf of
the County in fulfillment of their designated program.

“Area” means Cibola County, New Mexico

Page 2 of 34



4.25 “Policy” as used in this document also infers “local regulation” or “regulation” as used in the
Code (Section 13-1-80 NMSA 1978).

5. APPLICATION OF PROCUREMENT LAW. When procurement involves the expenditure of
federal funds, the procurement shall be conducted in accordance with mandatory applicable federal
and state laws and regulations. When mandatory applicable federal law or regulations are
inconsistent with the provisions of the state Procurement Code or this policy, compliance with
federal law or regulations shall be compliance with the state Procurement Code (Section 13-1-30
NMSA 1978).

51 Funds provided under federal or state grants may not be used to duplicate facilities or services
available with or without reimbursement from federal, state, or local sources.

6. CENTRALIZATION OF PROCUREMENT ACTIVITY.

6.1 Purchasing Office. The Purchasing Office for the County is the Business Manager’s office of the
County. The Purchasing Agent of the County shall oversee and coordinate all procurement for the
County.

6.2 Procurement Manager. The individual designated by County Manager to oversee a specific
procurement. Typically the individual would be a designee of the user agency most familiar with
the specific procurement.

6.3 Purchasing officer also means the office or officer of the user agency responsible for procurement
under this policy.

6.4 Cooperative procurement. Nothing in this section should be interpreted as limiting the ability of
the County to make procurements under existing contracts or enter into cooperative procurement
agreements.

7. INSPECTION OF PUBLIC RECORDS. The inspection of public records is governed by the
Inspection of Public Records Act, Sections14-2-1 through 14-2-12 NMSA 1978. To the extent that
any provision of this policy conflicts with the Inspection of Public Records Act, as interpreted by
the courts of this state, that act shall control. Furthermore, no obligation to keep data confidential
that is contained in this policy is intended to create any liability that would not otherwise exist
under federal or state law.

8. DOLLAR AMOUNTS. Whenever a dollar amount appears in this policy, such amount is exclusive
of applicable gross receipts and local option taxes as the term is defined in Section 7-9-3 (Q)
NMSA 1978.

9. INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE.

9.1 Tort liability. Except as provided for in the Tort Claims Act, Sections 41-4-1 through 41-4-27
NMSA 1978, no contract governed by this policy shall contain any provision whereby the County
agrees to indemnify or provide tort liability insurance for any contractor. The indemnification and
insurance provisions of contracts provided for in the Tort Claims Act shall be approved in writing
by the County legal counsel or risk manager before they become effective.

9.2 Other risks. No contract governed by this policy shall contain any provision whereby the County
agrees to indemnify or provide a contractor with insurance for non-tort risks unless the provision
has been approved in writing by the County legal counsel or risk manager.

9.3 Contract provisions void. Any indemnification or insurance provision in any contract executed in
Page 3 of 34



10.

11.

111

11.2

11.3

114

115

11.6

11.7

11.8

11.9

11.10

1111

11.12

11.13

11.14

12.

violation of this section shall be void and of no effect.

SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this policy, or any application thereof, to any person or
circumstance, is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect any other provision or application of
this policy which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application.

EXEMPTIONS FROM PROCUREMENT THROUGH THE CODE (Section 13-1-98 NMSA
1978) The provisions of this policy and the Code shall not apply to:

Procurement of items of tangible personal property or services by the County from a state agency,
a local public body or external procurement unit except as otherwise provided in Sections 13-1-
135 through 13-1-137 NMSA 1978;

Printing or duplicating contracts involving materials that are required to be filed in connection
with proceedings before administrative agencies or state or federal courts;

Purchases of publicly provided or publicly regulated gas, electricity, water, sewer, and refuse
collection systems;

Purchases of books and periodicals from the publishers or copyright holders thereof;
Travel or shipping by common carrier or by private conveyance or to meals and lodging;

Minor purchases not exceeding $5,000 consisting of magazine subscriptions, conference
registration fees and other similar purchases where prepayments are required,;

The issuance, sale and delivery of public securities pursuant to the applicable authorizing statute,
with the exception of bond attorneys and general financial consultants;

Contracts entered into by the County with a private independent contractor for the operation, or
provision and operation, of a jail pursuant to Sections 33-3-26 and 33-3-27 NMSA 1978;

Contracts and expenditures for services or items of tangible personal property to be paid or
compensated by money or other property transferred to New Mexico law enforcement agencies
by the U.S. department of justice drug enforcement administration;

Contracts with professional entertainers;

Contracts and expenditures for litigation expenses in connection with proceedings before
administrative agencies or state or federal courts, including experts, mediators, court reporters,
process servers and witness fees, but not including attorney contracts;

Contracts for service relating to the design, engineering, financing, construction and acquisition of
public improvements undertaken in improvement districts pursuant to Section 3-33-14.1L NMSA
1978 and in county improvement districts pursuant to Section 4-55A-12.1L NMSA 1978;

Works of art for museums or for display in public buildings or places; and

Purchases of advertising in all media, including radio, television, print and electronic.

APPLICATION -- COMPETITIVE SEALED BIDS. The following provisions of this section
apply to any procurement made by competitive sealed bids.

Page 4 of 34



12.1

12.1.1

12.1.2

12.1.3

12.1.4

12.1.5

12.1.6

12.2

1221

12.3

124

125

Competitive Sealed Bids Required. All procurement shall be achieved by competitive sealed bids
except procurement achieved pursuant to the following methods:

Competitive sealed proposals, see section 15 of this policy;
Small purchases, see section 16 of this policy;
Sole source procurement, see section 17 of this policy;
Emergency procurement, see section 18 of this policy;
Procurement under existing contracts, see section 19 of this policy; and
Purchases from anti-poverty program businesses.
Invitation for Bids (IFB).

General. The invitation for bids (IFB) is used to initiate competitive sealed bid procurement.

The IFB shall include the following: a) the specifications for the services, construction or items of
tangible personal property to be procured; b) all contractual terms and conditions applicable to the
procurement; c) the term of the contract and conditions of renewal or extension, if any; d)
instructions and information to bidders, including the location where bids are to be received and
the date, time and place of the bid opening; e) a notice that the IFB may be canceled and that

any and all bids may be rejected in whole or in part when it is in the best interest of the County;
f) a notice that reads substantially as follows: “The Procurement Code, Sections 13-1-28 through
13-1-199 NMSA 1978, imposes civil and misdemeanor criminal penalties for its violation. In
addition, the New Mexico criminal statutes impose felony penalties for bribes, gratuities and
kick-backs”; and g) required federal certifications — see section 27 of this policy, if applicable.

Incorporation by reference. The IFB may incorporate documents by reference, provided that the
IFB specifies where such documents can be obtained.

Evaluation criteria. The IFB shall set forth the evaluation criteria that will be used to determine
acceptability such as inspection, testing, quality, workmanship, delivery and suitability for a
particular purpose. Those criteria such as discounts, transportation costs and total or life cycle
costs that will affect the bid price shall be objectively measurable. No criteria may be used in bid
evaluation that is not set forth in the IFB.

Bid form. The IFB shall provide a form which shall include space in which the bid price shall be
inserted and which the bidder shall sign and submit along with all other necessary submissions. A
bidder may submit a reasonable facsimile of the bid form. Oral, telephonic and telegraphic bids
except as provided in this subsection are invalid and shall not be considered. E-mailed or bids sent
via FAX to a third party and delivered in a sealed envelope to the location where bids are to be
received by the date and time shown in the bid, will be accepted for consideration.

12.6 Bid samples and descriptive literature.

12.6.1

12.6.2

12.6.3

"Descriptive literature™ means information available in the ordinary course of business that
shows the characteristics, construction, or operation of an item.

"Bid sample" means a sample furnished by a bidder that shows the characteristics of an item
offered in the bid.

Bid samples or descriptive literature may be required when it is necessary to evaluate required
Page 5 of 34



12.6.4

12.7

12.8

1281

12.8.2

12.8.3

12.9

12.10

12.10.1

12.10.2

12.10.3

12.10.4

characteristics of the item bid.

Bid samples, when required, shall be furnished free of expense to the County and prior to the
time set for the opening of bids. Samples not destroyed or mutilated in testing will be returned
upon request by mail, express or freight, collect. Each sample must be labeled to clearly show
the bid number and the bidder's name.

Bidding time. Bidding time is the period of time between the date of distribution of the IFB and the
time and date set for receipt of bids. In each case bidding time shall be set to provide bidders a
reasonable time to prepare their bids. In no case shall the bidding time be shorter than the time
required for publication under the following section.

Public Notice, Publication. The IFB or notice thereof shall be published not less than 10 calendar
days prior to the date set for the opening of bids. The IFB or notice must be published once in at
least one newspaper of general circulation in the Area.

These requirements of publication are in addition to any other procedures that may be adopted
by the County to notify prospective bidders that bids will be received, including but not limited
to publication in trade journals, if available.

Bidder lists. The Purchasing Agent shall send copies of the notice or IFB involving the
expenditure of more than $60,000 to those businesses which have signified in writing an
interest in submitting bids for particular categories of items of tangible personal property,
construction and services and which have paid any required fees (Section 13-1-104 NMSA
1978).

Public availability. A copy of the IFB shall be made available for public inspection at the office
of the Purchasing Agent and the consultant, if applicable.

Pre-Bid Conferences. Pre-bid conferences may be conducted to explain the procurement
requirements. They shall be announced to all prospective bidders known to have received the

IFB. The conference should be held long enough after the IFB has been issued to allow bidders to
become familiar with it, but sufficiently before bid opening to allow consideration of the
conference results in preparing their bids. Nothing stated at the pre-bid conference shall change the
IFB unless a change is made by written amendment as provided in this policy.

Amendments to the Invitation for Bids.

Form. An amendment to the IFB shall be identified as such and shall require that bidders
acknowledge its receipt. The amendment shall refer to the portions of the IFB it amends.

Distribution. Amendments shall be sent to all prospective bidders known to have received the
IFB.

Timeliness. Amendments shall be distributed within a reasonable time to allow prospective
bidders to consider them in preparing their bids. If the time and date set for receipt of bids will
not permit such preparation, the time shall be increased to the extent possible in the amendment
or, if necessary, by telegram or telephone or by other electronic means and confirmed in the
amendment.

Use of amendments. Amendments should be used to: a) make any changes in the IFB such as
changes in quantity, purchase descriptions, delivery schedules, and opening dates; b) correct
defects or ambiguities; or c) furnish to other bidders information given to one bidder if such

Page 6 of 34



information will assist the other bidders in submitting bids or if the lack of such information
would prejudice the other bidders.

12.11 Pre-opening Modification or Withdrawal of Bids.

12111

12.11.2

12.11.3

Procedure. A bid may be modified or withdrawn by a bidder prior to the time set for bid
opening by delivering written or telegraphic notice to the location designated in the IFB as the
place where bids are to be received.

Disposition of bid security. If a bid is withdrawn in accordance with this section, the bid
security, if any, shall be returned to the bidder.

Records. All documents relating to the modification or withdrawal of bids shall be made a part
of the appropriate procurement file.

12.12 Late Bids, Late Withdrawals and Late Modifications.

12.12.1

12.12.2

12.12.3

Definition. Any bid or any withdrawal or modification of a bid received after the time and date
for opening of bids at the place designated for opening is late.

General policy. No late bid, late modification, or late withdrawal will be considered unless
received before contract award, and the bid, modification, or withdrawal would have been
timely but for the action or inaction of the purchasing office personnel directly serving the
procurement activity. Exception, a late bid may be considered for award if it is the only bid
received.

Records. All documents relating to late bids, late modifications, or late withdrawals shall be
made a part of the appropriate procurement file.

12.13 Bid Opening.

12.13.1

12.13.2

12.13.3

Receipt. Upon its receipt, each bid and modification shall be time-stamped but not opened and
shall be stored in a secure place until the time and date set for bid opening.

No bids received. If no bids are received or if all bids received are rejected in accordance with
the provisions of sections 20 and 21 of this policy, a new IFB shall be issued. If upon re-
bidding with no change in specifications from the first IFB, the bids received are unacceptable,
or if no bids are secured, the Purchasing Agent may purchase (i.e., as opposed to procure) the
items of tangible personal property, construction or services in the open market at the best
obtainable price.

Opening and recording. Bids and modifications shall be opened publicly in the presence of one
or more witnesses at the time and place designated in the IFB. The name of each bidder, the
amount of each bid and each bid item, if appropriate, the names and addresses of the required
witnesses, and such other relevant information as may be specified by the Purchasing Agent
shall be recorded. The record shall be open for public inspection. Each bid, except those portions
for which a bidder has made a written request for confidentiality, shall also be open to public
inspection. Any data, which a bidder believes should be kept confidential shall accompany the
bid and shall be readily separable from the bid in order to facilitate public inspection of the non-
confidential portion of the bid. Prices and makes and models or catalogue numbers of the items
offered, deliveries, and terms of payment shall be publicly available at the time of bid opening
regardless of any designation to the contrary.

Page 7 of 34



12.14 Mistakes in Bids.

12.14.1

12.14.2

12.14.3

12.14.4

12.14.5

Consideration for award. Bids shall be unconditionally accepted for consideration for award
without alteration or correction, except as authorized in sections 12 through 14 of this policy
and the Procurement Code. In addition to the requirement for the prime contractor and
subcontractors to be registered as provided as provided in Section 13-4-13.1 A bid submitted by
a prime contractor that was not registered as required by Section 13-4-13.1 NMSA 1978 shall
not be considered for award. A bid submitted by a registered prime contractor that includes any
subcontractor that is not registered in accordance with that section may be considered for award
following substitution of a registered subcontractor for any unregistered subcontractor in
accordance with Section 13-4-36 NMSA 1978 (Section 13-1-105 NMSA 1978).

General principles. Correction or withdrawal of a bid because of an inadvertent, nonjudgmental
mistake in the bid requires careful consideration to protect the integrity of the competitive
bidding system, and to assure fairness. If the mistake is attributable to an error in judgment, the
bid may not be corrected. Bid correction or withdrawal by reason of a nonjudgmental mistake is
permissible but only to the extent authorized in sections 12 through 14 of this policy.

Mistakes discovered before opening. A bidder may correct mistakes discovered before bid
opening by withdrawing or correcting the bid as provided in subsection 12.11 of this policy.

Confirmation of bid. When the Purchasing Agent knows or has reason to conclude that a
mistake has been made in the low bid, the Purchasing Agent should request the low bidder to
confirm the bid. Situations in which confirmation should be requested include obvious,
apparent errors on the face of the low bid or a bid unreasonably lower than the other bids
submitted. If the low bidder alleges mistake, the bid may be corrected or withdrawn if the
conditions set forth in subsection 12.14.5 are met.

Mistakes discovered after opening. This subsection sets forth procedures to be applied in three
situations in which mistakes in bids are discovered after the time and date set for bid opening:

a) Technical irregularities. Technical irregularities are matters of form rather than substance
evident from the bid document, or insignificant mistakes that can be waived or corrected
without prejudice to other bidders; that is, when there is no effect on price, quality or
quantity. The Purchasing Agent may waive such irregularities or allow the low bidder to
correct them if either is in the best interest of the County. Examples include the failure of
the low bidder to: 1) return the number of signed bids required by the IFB; 2) sign the bid,
but only if the unsigned bid is accompanied by other material indicating the low bidder's
intent to be bound; or 3) acknowledge receipt of an amendment to the IFB, but only if: it is
clear from the bid that the low bidder received the amendment and intended to be bound by
its terms; or the amendment involved had no effect on price, quality or quantity.

b) Mistakes where intended correct bid is evident. If the mistake and the intended correct bid
are clearly evident on the face of a bid document, the bid shall be corrected to the intended
correct bid and may not be withdrawn. Examples of mistakes that may be clearly evident on
the face of a bid document are typographical errors, errors in extending unit prices,
transposition errors, and arithmetical errors. It is emphasized that mistakes in unit prices
cannot be corrected.

c) Mistakes where intended correct bid is not evident. A low bidder alleging a material mistake
of fact which makes the bid non-responsive may be permitted to withdraw the bid if: 1) a
mistake is clearly evident on the face of the bid document but the intended correct bid is
not; or 2) the low bidder submits evidence which clearly and convincingly demonstrates

Page 8 of 34



that a mistake was made.

d) Written determination. When a bid is corrected or withdrawn, or a correction or withdrawal
is denied, the Purchasing Agent shall prepare a written determination showing that the
relief was granted or denied in accordance with this section.

12.15 Bid Evaluation and Award.

12.15.1

12.15.2

12.15.3

12.15.4

12.15.5

General. A contract solicited by competitive sealed bids shall be awarded with reasonable
promptness by written notice to the lowest responsible bidder. The IFB shall set forth the
requirements and criteria that will be used to determine the lowest responsive bid. No bid shall
be evaluated for any requirement or criterion that is not disclosed in the IFB. Contracts solicited
by competitive sealed bids shall require that the bid amount exclude the applicable state gross
receipts tax or local option tax but that the County shall be required to pay the tax including any
increase in the tax becoming effective after the contract is entered into. The tax shall be shown
as a separate amount on each billing or request for payment made under the contract.

Product acceptability. The IFB shall set forth all evaluation criteria to be used in determining
product acceptability. It may require the submission of bid samples, descriptive literature,
technical data, or other material. It may also provide for accomplishing any or all of the
following prior to award: a) inspection or testing of a product for such characteristics as quality
or workmanship; b) examination of such elements as appearance, finish, taste or feel; or c)
other examinations to determine whether it conforms with other purchase description
requirements.

Purpose of acceptability evaluation. An acceptability evaluation is not conducted for the
purpose of determining whether one bidder's item is superior to another's but only to determine
that a bidder's offering is acceptable as set forth in the IFB. Any bidder's offering which does
not meet the acceptability requirements shall be rejected as non-responsive.

Brand-name or equal specification. Where a brand-name or equal specification is used in a
solicitation, the solicitation shall contain explanatory language that the use of a brand name is for
the purpose of describing the standard of quality, performance and characteristics desired and is
not intended to limit or restrict competition. When bidding an "or equal” the burden of
persuasion is on the supplier or manufacturer who has not been specified to convince the
Purchasing Agent that their product is, in fact, equal to the one specified. The Purchasing Agent
or purchasing officer is given the responsibility and judgment for making a final determination
on whether a proposed substitution is an "or equal”.

Determination of lowest bidder. Following determination of product acceptability as set forth in
this section, if any is required; bids will be evaluated to determine which bidder offers the lowest
cost to the County in accordance with the evaluation criteria set forth in the IFB. Only
objectively measurable criteria that are set forth in the IFB shall be applied in determining the
lowest bidder. Examples of such criteria include, but are not limited to, discount, transportation
costs and ownership or life-cycle formulas. Evaluation factors need not be precise predictors of
actual future costs, but to the extent possible the evaluation factors shall be reasonable

estimates based upon information the County has available concerning future use.

a) Prompt payment discounts. Prompt payment discounts shall not be considered in
computing the low bid. Such discounts may be considered after award of the contract.

b) Trade discounts. Trade discounts shall be considered in computing the low bid. Such
discounts may be shown separately, but must be deducted by the bidder in calculating the
unit price quoted.

Page 9 of 34



12.15.6

12.15.7

12.15.8

12.16

12.17

12.17.1

12.17.2

¢) Quantity discounts. Quantity discounts shall be included in the price of an item. Such
discounts may not be considered where set out separately unless the IFB so specifies.

d) Transportation costs. Transportation costs shall be considered in computing the low bid.
Such costs may be computed into the bid price or be listed as a separate item.

e) Total or life cycle costs. Award may be determined by total or life cycle costing if so
indicated in the IFB. Lifecycle cost evaluation may take into account operative,
maintenance, and money costs, other costs of ownership and usage and resale or residual
value, in addition to acquisition price, in determining the lowest bid cost over the period the
item will be used.

f) Energy efficiency. Award may be determined by an evaluation consisting of acquisition
price plus the cost of energy consumed over a projected period of use.

Restrictions. Nothing in subsection 12.15 of this policy shall be deemed to permit contract award
to a bidder submitting a higher quality item than designated in the IFB unless the bidder is also
the lowest bidder as determined under subsection 12.15.5. Further, except as provided in this
subsection, this policy does not permit negotiations with any bidder or disclosing bid amounts to
another bidder prior to award. If the lowest responsive bid has otherwise qualified,

and if there is no change in the original terms and conditions, the lowest responsible bidder may
negotiate with the purchaser (i.e., this exception applies only to purchases and does not apply to
procurements generally) for a lower total bid to avoid rejection of all bids for the reason that the
lowest bid was up to ten percent higher than budgeted project funds. Such negotiation shall not
be allowed if the lowest bid was more than ten percent over budgeted project funds.

Documentation of award. Following award, a record showing the basis for determining the
successful bidder shall be made a part of the procurement file.

Publicizing awards. Written notice of award shall be sent to the successful bidder. Notice of
award shall also be posted at the County Manager’s office.

Statutory preferences (Statutory preferences to be applied in determining low bidder). New
Mexico law provides certain statutory preferences to resident businesses, resident manufacturers,
and for recycled content goods (Sections 13-1-21 and 13-1-22 NMSA 1978). The statute further
provides a preference to resident construction contractors (Sections 13-4-1 through 13-4-3 NMSA
1978) which must be applied in determining the lowest bidder.

Identical low bids.

Definition. Identical low bids are low responsive bids, from responsible bidders, which are
identical in price after the application of the preferences referred to in this policy and which
meet all the requirements and criteria set forth in the IFB.

Award. When two or more identical low bids are received, the Purchasing Agent may: a) award
pursuant to the multiple source award provisions of Sections 13-1-153 and 13-1-154 NMSA
1978; b) award to a resident business if the identical low bids are submitted by a resident
business and a nonresident business; c) award to a resident manufacturer if the identical low
bids are submitted by a resident manufacturer and a resident business; d) award to a bidder
offering recycled content goods if the identical low bids are for recycled content goods and
virgin goods; e) award by lottery to one of the identical low bidders; or f) reject all bids and re-
solicit bids or proposals for the required services, construction or items of tangible personal

property.
Page 10 of 34



13.

13.1

13.2

13.3

14.

MULTI-STEP SEALED BIDS.

General. Multi-step bidding is a variant of the competitive sealed bidding method. This method
may be utilized when the central purchasing office makes a determination that it is impractical
initially to prepare specifications to support an award based on price, or that specifications are
inadequate or are too general to permit full and free competition without technical evaluation and
discussion.

Phased process. Multi-step bidding is a phased process which combines elements of both the
competitive sealed bid and the competitive sealed proposal methods, seeking necessary
information or unpriced technical offers in the initial phase; and regular competitive sealed
bidding, inviting bidders who submitted technically acceptable offers in the initial phase, to
submit competitive sealed price bids on the technical offers in the final phase. The contract shall
be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder. If time is a factor, the central purchasing office may
require Offerors to submit a separate sealed bid during the initial phase to be opened after the
technical evaluation.

Public notice. Whenever multi-step sealed bids are used, public notice for the first phase shall be
given in accordance with subsection 12.8 of this policy. Public notice is not required for the
second phase.

PAYMENTS FOR PURCHASES. [Contract clause] All contracts resulting from an invitation for

bids shall contain a clause allowing for late payment charges against the contracting agency in the
amount and under the conditions set forth in Section 13-1-158 NMSA 1978. For purchases funded
by state or federal grants to the County, payments shall be tendered to the contractor within five
working days of receipt of funds from the funding agency.

15. APPLICATION -- COMPETITIVE SEALED PROPOSALS.

151

15.2

15.3

154

1541

General. Except as provided in subsections 15.2 and 15.3 of this section, the provisions of this
section apply to any procurement made by competitive sealed proposals.

Architects, engineers, landscape architects and surveyors. The provisions of this section do not
apply to the procurement of professional services of architects, engineers, landscape architects and
surveyors for local public works projects. Except that when procuring such professional services
for local public works projects the County shall comply with Sections 13-66.1, 13-1-120 through
13-1-124 NMSA 1978.

Professional Services. "Professional services" are defined in Section 13-1-76 NMSA 1978. The
section of statute acknowledges the difficulty of any attempt made to recognize and list each and
every service that could conceivably fall within the definition of "professional services". Instead,
the statute provides in relevant part that "...other persons or businesses providing similar
professional services to those listed may be designated as such by a determination issued by the
Purchasing Agent.” In instances where "...other persons or businesses providing similar
professional services...” as cited in Section 13-1-76, NMSA 1978, is not clearly defined,
Contractors shall submit a written request to the purchasing office for issuance of a determination
and a finding that the service is to be designated as a professional service.

General Discussion.

Use of competitive sealed proposals. Except as provided in Section 13-119.1G NMSA 1978 for
procuring professional services or a design and build project delivery system, or when the

Page 11 of 34



15.4.2

15.4.3

15.4.4

15.5
1551

155.2

15.5.3

1554

Purchasing Agent and the procurement manager with approval of the County Manager makes a
determination that the use of competitive sealed bidding for items of tangible personal property
effected by competitive sealed proposals. (Section 13-1-111 NMSA 1978).

Definitions. The words "practicable" and "advantageous" are to be given ordinary dictionary
meanings. The term "practicable" denotes what may be accomplished or put into practical
application. "Advantageous” denotes a judgmental assessment of what is in the County’s best
interest. The use of competitive sealed bids may be practicable, that is, reasonably possible, but
not necessarily advantageous, that is, in the County’s best interest.

Proposals offer flexibility. The key element in determining advantageousness is the need for
flexibility. The competitive sealed proposal method differs from the competitive sealed bid
method in two important ways: a) it permits discussions with competing Offerors and changes
in their proposals including price; and; b) it allows comparative judgmental evaluations to be
made when selecting among acceptable proposals for award of a contract.

Determinations by category. The Purchasing Agent’s office may make determinations by
category of services or items of tangible personal property that it is either not practicable or not
advantageous to procure specified types of service or items of tangible personal property by
competitive sealed bids in which case competitive sealed proposals shall be utilized. The
purchasing office may modify or revoke such determinations at any time.

Request for Proposals (RFP):

Initiation. The request for proposals (RFP) is used to initiate competitive sealed proposal
procurement. The County shall follow published guidelines and procedures issued by the
Purchasing Agent’s office from development stage through award of RFP-based procurements.
At a minimum the RFP shall include the following: a) the specifications for the services or
items of tangible personal property to be procured; b) all contractual terms and conditions
applicable to the procurement; c) instructions concerning the submission and response to
questions; d) the term of the contract and conditions of renewal or extension, if any; e)
instructions and information to Offerors, including the location where proposals are to be
received and the date, time and place where proposals are to be received and reviewed; f) all of
the evaluation factors, and the relative weights to be given to the factors in evaluating proposals;
g) a statement that discussions may be conducted with Offerors who submit proposals
determined to be reasonably susceptible of being selected for award, but that proposals may be
accepted without such discussions; h) a notice that the RFP may be canceled and that any and
all proposals may be rejected in whole or in part when it is in the best interest of the County; i) a
statement of how proposed costs should be submitted; j) a notice that reads substantially as
follows: “The Procurement Code, Sections 13-1-28 through 13-1-199 NMSA

1978, imposes civil and misdemeanor criminal penalties for its violation. In addition, the New
Mexico criminal statutes impose felony penalties for bribes, gratuities and kick-backs”, and k)
required federal certifications — see section 27 of this policy, if applicable.

Incorporation by reference. The RFP may incorporate documents by reference, provided that
the RFP specifies where such documents can be obtained.

Form of proposal. The manner, in which proposals are to be submitted, including any forms for
that purpose, should be designated in the RFP.

Proposal preparation time. Fifteen to thirty calendar days between the date of issue and the
proposal due date is the recommended minimum proposal preparation time. A longer
preparation time may be required for complex procurements or for procurements that require
substantial offeror resources to prepare an acceptable proposal.provided in subsection 12.8 of

Page 12 of 34



15.7

15.8

15.8.1

15.8.2

15.9

15.10

15.11

15.111

15.11.2

15.12
15.12.1

15.12.2

15.12.3

this policy. It is further provided that subsection 12.8.2 of this policy does not apply to a
solicitation of a professional service contract unless the value of the contract will exceed
$30,000, for architects and engineers - $25,000, and for landscape architects and surveyors -
$5,000 (Section 13-1-125B NMSA 1978).

Pre-proposal Conferences. Pre-proposal conferences may be conducted in accordance with
subsection 12.9 of this policy. Any such conference should be held prior to submission of initial
proposals.

Amendments to the Request for Proposals.
Prior to submission of proposals. Prior to submission of proposals, amendments to the RFP may
be made in accordance with subsection 12.10 of this policy.

After submission of proposals. After submission of proposals, amendments to the RFP shall be
distributed only to short-listed Offerors. The short-listed Offerors shall be permitted to submit
new proposals or to amend those submitted. If in the opinion of the Purchasing Agent or
procurement manager, a contemplated amendment will significantly change the nature of the
procurement, the RFP shall be canceled in accordance with sections 20 and 21 of this policy,
and a new RFP issued.

Modification or Withdrawal of Proposals. Proposals may be modified or withdrawn prior to the
established due date in accordance with subsection 12.11 of this policy. The established due date
is either the time and date announced for receipt of proposals or receipt of modifications to
proposals, if any; or, if discussions have begun, it is the time and date by which best and final
offers must be submitted by short-listed Offerors.

Late Proposals, Late Modifications and Late Withdrawals. Any proposal, withdrawal, or
modification received after the established due date at the place designated for receipt of
proposals is late. See section 15.9 of this policy for the definition of "established due date". They
may be considered only in accordance with section 12.12 of this policy.

Receipt and Opening of Proposals.

Receipt. Proposals and modifications shall be time-stamped upon receipt and held in a secure
place until the established due date. See section 15.9 of this policy for the definition of
"established due date”.

Opening. Proposals shall not be opened publicly and shall not be open to public inspection until
after an offeror has been selected for award of a contract. An offeror may request in writing
nondisclosure of confidential data. Such data shall accompany the proposal and shall be readily
separable from the proposal in order to facilitate eventual public inspection of the non-
confidential portion of the proposal.

Evaluation of Proposals.
Evaluation factors. The evaluation shall be based on the evaluation factors and the relative
weights set forth in the RFP.

Evaluation Committee. The County Manager shall appoint an evaluation committee prior to the
due date for receipt of proposals, unless the Board of County Commissioners chooses to
appoint an Evaluation Committee. The size of the committee should be manageable and may
include both user and technical support representatives.

Classification of proposals. For the purpose of conducting discussions under subsection 15.13 of
this policy, proposals shall be initially classified as a) responsive; b) potentially responsive, that

Page 13 of 34



15.12.4

15.13
15.13.1

15.13.2

15.13.3

15.13.4

15.135

15.13.6

15.13.7

15.14

15.15

is, reasonably susceptible of being made responsive; or ¢) non-responsive.

Disqualification. Non-responsive proposals are disqualified and eliminated from further
consideration. A written determination in the form of a letter must be sent promptly to the
disqualified offeror setting forth the grounds for the disqualification, and made a part of the
procurement file.

Proposal Discussion and Negotiations with Individual Offers.
Discussions authorized. Discussions may be conducted with responsible Offerors who submit
acceptable or responsive, potentially acceptable or potentially responsive proposals.
Discussions shall be conducted by the Purchasing Agent, the procurement manager or the
evaluation committee as a whole body. Individual discussions by committee members except as
otherwise expressed in this subsection are prohibited.

Purposes of discussions. Discussions are held to clarify technical or other aspects of the
proposals.

Conduct of discussions. If during discussions there is a need for any substantial clarification or
change in the request for proposals, the request for proposals shall be amended to incorporate
such clarification or change. Any substantial oral clarification of a proposal shall be reduced to
writing by the offeror. Proposals may be accepted and evaluated without such discussion. This
is not an opportunity for the Offerors to amend the substance of their proposals.

Short list. All responsible Offerors who submit acceptable proposals are eligible for the short
list. If numerous acceptable proposals have been submitted, however, the Purchasing Agent or
procurement manager may rank the proposals and select the highest ranked proposals for the
short list. Those responsible Offerors who are selected for the short list are the short-listed
“Offerors" or "finalist Offerors". The short list shall be approved by the County Manager or
Business Manager before the procurement process can continue.

Competitive negotiations. Competitive negotiations may be held among the short-listed
Offerors to: a) promote understanding of the County’s requirements and short-listed Offerors'
proposal; and b) facilitate arriving at a contract that will be most advantageous to the County
taking into consideration the evaluation factors set forth in the RFP.

Except for circumstances and situations otherwise approved by the purchasing office,
negotiations of the relevant terms and conditions as well as any other important factors in an
RFP and proposed contract are negotiated prior to award of a contract, not after award.

Conduct of competitive negotiations. Short-listed Offerors shall be accorded fair and equal
treatment with respect to any negotiations and revisions of proposals. The procurement
manager should establish procedures and schedules for conducting negotiations. If during
discussions there is a need for any substantial clarification of or change in the RFP, the RFP
shall be amended to incorporate such clarification or change. Any substantial oral clarification
of a proposal shall be reduced to writing by the short-listed offeror.

Disclosure. The contents of any proposal shall not be disclosed so as to be available to competing
Offerors during the negotiation process and prior to award.

Best and Final Offers. The Purchasing Agent or procurement manager may establish a common
date and time for short-listed or finalist Offerors to submit best and final offers. Best and final
offers shall be submitted only once; provided, however, the purchasing office may make a written
determination that it is in a County’s best interest to conduct additional discussions or change the
County’s requirements and require another submission of best and final offers. Otherwise, no

Page 14 of 34



discussion of or changes in the best and final offers shall be allowed prior to award. Short-listed
Offerors shall also be informed that if they do not submit a notice of withdrawal or another best
and final offer, their immediately previous offer will be construed as their best and final offer.

15.16 Mistakes in Proposals.

15.16.1 Modification or withdrawal of proposals. Proposals may be modified or withdrawn as provided
in subsection 15.9 of this policy.

15.16.2 Mistakes discovered after receipt of proposals. This subsection sets forth procedures to be
applied in four situations in which mistakes in proposals are discovered after receipt of
proposals.

a) Confirmation of proposal. When the Purchasing Agent or procurement manager knows or
has reason to conclude before award that a mistake has been made, the Purchasing Agent or
procurement manager should request the offeror to confirm the proposal. If the offeror
alleges mistake, the proposal may be corrected or withdrawn during any discussions that
are held or if the conditions set forth in subsection 15.16.3 of this section are met.

b) During negotiations; prior to best and final offers. Once negotiations are commenced or
after best and final offers are requested, any short-listed or finalist offeror may freely
correct any mistake by modifying or withdrawing the proposal until the time and date set
for receipt of best and final offers.

15.16.3 Technical irregularities. Technical irregularities are matters of form rather than substance
evident from the proposal document, or insignificant mistakes that can be waived or corrected
without prejudice to other Offerors; that is, when there is no effect on price, quality or quantity.
If discussions are not held or if best and final offers upon which award will be made have been
received, the Purchasing Agent or procurement manager may waive such irregularities or allow
an Offeror to correct them if either is in the best interest of the County. Examples include the
failure of an offeror to: return the number of signed proposals required by the RFP; sign the
proposal, but only if the unsigned proposal is accompanied by other material indicating the
offeror's intent to be bound; or acknowledge receipt of an amendment to the RFP, but only if: it
is clear from the proposal that the offeror received the amendment and intended to be bound by
its terms; or the amendment involved had no effect on price, quality or quantity.

15.16.4 Correction of mistakes. If discussions are not held, or if the best and final offers upon which
award will be made have been received, mistakes shall be corrected to the intended correct
offer whenever the mistake and the intended correct offer are clearly evident on the face of the
proposal, in which event the proposal may not be withdrawn.

15.16.5 Withdrawal of proposals. If discussions are not held, or if the best and final offers upon which
award will be made have been received, an Offeror alleging a material mistake of fact which
makes a proposal non-responsive may be permitted to withdraw the proposal if: a) the mistake
is clearly evident on the face of the proposal but the intended correct offer is not; or b) the
offeror submits evidence which clearly and convincingly demonstrates that a mistake was
made.

15.16.6 Determination required. When a proposal is corrected or withdrawn, or correction or
withdrawal is denied under subsections 15.16.3 through 15.16.5 of this section, the Purchasing
Agent or procurement manager shall prepare a written determination showing that the relief
was granted or denied in accordance with this section.

15.17 Public Inspections.
Page 15 of 34



15.17.1 General. After award, any written determinations made pursuant to this policy, the evaluation

15.17.2

committee report and each proposal, except those portions for which the offeror has made a
written request for confidentiality, shall be open to public inspection. Confidential data is
normally restricted to confidential financial information concerning the offeror's organization
and data that qualifies as a trade secret in accordance with the Uniform Trade Secrets Act,
Sections 57-3A-1to 57-3A-7 NMSA 1978. The price of products offered or the cost of services
proposed may not be designated as confidential information.

Confidential data. If a request is received for disclosure of data, for which an offeror has made a
written request for confidentiality, the purchasing office shall examine the offeror's request and
make a written determination that specifies which portions of the proposal should be disclosed.
Unless the offeror takes legal action to prevent the disclosure, the data will be so disclosed.
After award the proposal shall be open to public inspection subject to any continuing prohibition
on the disclosure of confidential data.

15.18 Payments for Purchases. [Contract Clause] All contracts resulting from a request for proposals

shall contain a clause allowing for late payment charges against the County or it’s subrecipients in
the amount and under the conditions set forth in Section 13-1-158 NMSA 1978. For purchases
funded by state or federal grants to the County, payments shall be tendered to the contractor
within five working days of receipt of funds from the funding agency and after approval by the
Board of County Commissioners.

16. APPLICATION -- SMALL PURCHASES. The provisions of this section apply to the
procurement of nonprofessional services, construction or items of tangible personal property having
a value not exceeding $20,000 and to the procurement of professional services having a value not
exceeding $30,000, except procurement for architects, engineers, landscape architects and
surveyors, see subsection 16.3.1. The methods of procurement set forth in subsections 16.2 through
16.4 of this policy provide alternatives to the competitive sealed bid and competitive sealed proposal
methods of procurement. If the procurement methods set forth in subsections 16.2 through
16.4 of this policy are not used the competitive sealed bid or competitive sealed proposal methods
shall apply.

16.1

16.2

16.2.1

Division of Requirements. Procurement requirements shall not be artificially divided so as to
constitute a small purchase under this section.

Small Purchases of Items of Tangible Personal Property, Construction and Nonprofessional
Services.

Quotation to be obtained. Insofar as it is practical for small purchases of nonprofessional
services, construction or items of tangible personal property written quotations are to be
recorded and placed in the procurement file as set forth below:

a) $2499.99 or less. Purchases shall be made according to the best obtainable price from
a vendor, catalogue or website. This quotation is required to be recorded on a
procurement requisition form and made a part of the procurement file .

b) $2,500.00 to $9,999.99. Purchases shall be made according to the best obtainable price
provided at least 3 quotations from different vendors, have been obtained for such
purchases. These quotations are required to be recorded on a procurement requisition
form and made a part of the procurement file.

c) $10,000 to $39,999.99. Purchases shall be made according to the best obtainable price
provided at least 3 quotations from different vendors have been obtained for such

Page 16 of 34



16.2.2

16.2.3

16.2.4

16.2.5

16.3

16.3.1

16.3.2

16.3.3

16.3.4

17.

purchases. These quotations are required to be recorded on a procurement requisition form
and made a part of the procurement file...

d) $40,000.00 to 59.999.99. Purchases shall be made according to the best obtainable price
provided at least 3 quotations from different vendors, have been obtained for such
purchases. These quotations are required to be recorded on a procurement requisition form
and made a part of the procurement file.

e) $60,000 and above. All purchases exceeding $60,000.00 require formal bid procedures as
set forth in this policy.

Disclosure. Prior to award, the contents of any response to a quotation shall not be disclosed to
any other business from which the same request for quotation is also being solicited.

Bidders list. Although not required to be published in a newspaper or newspapers of general
circulation in the Area, the purchasing office shall send copies of the notice or request for
quotes/informal invitation for bids involving the expenditure of more than $10,000 but not
exceeding $20,000 to those businesses who have signified in writing an interest in submitting
bids for particular categories of items of tangible personal property, construction or services
and which have paid any required fees. For purposes of this policy an annual fee of $25.00 will
place a business on the registration list.

Award. Award shall be made to the business offering the lowest acceptable quotation.

Records. The names of the businesses submitting quotations and the date and the amount of
each quotation shall be recorded and maintained as a public record.

Small Purchases of Professional Services.

Application. The purchasing office may procure professional services: having a value not
exceeding $30,000; for the services of architects and engineers having a value not exceeding
$25,000; and for landscape architects and surveyors having a value not exceeding $5,000, in
accordance with the following subsections. In the case of architects, engineers, landscape
architects and surveyors the value shall not include applicable state and local gross receipts.

Examination of offeror list. Before contacting any business, the purchasing office is
encouraged to examine the office's current list of potential Offerors, if any. The purchasing
office is encouraged to contact at least three businesses for written or oral offers before
selecting a contractor.

Negotiations. The purchasing office shall negotiate a contract for the required services at a
fair and reasonable price to the County.

Disclosure. If more than one business is contacted, the contents of the written or oral offer of
one business shall not be disclosed to another business during the negotiation process.

APPLICATION -- SOLE SOURCE PROCUREMENTS. The provisions of this section

apply to all sole source procurements unless emergency conditions exist as defined in
subsection 18 of this policy.

Page 17 of 34



17.1 Sole Source Procurement of Items of Tangible Personal Property, Construction and
Nonprofessional Services.

17.1.1 Conditions for use. A contract may be awarded without competitive sealed bids or
competitive sealed proposals, regardless of the estimated cost, when the central purchasing
office makes a written determination, after conducting a good-faith review of available, that
there is only one source for the required items of tangible personal property, construction or
nonprofessional services. In cases of reasonable doubt, competition should be solicited.

17.1.2 Request by user agency. Any request by a user agency that procurement be restricted to one
potential contractor shall be accompanied by a written explanation as to why no other will be
suitable or acceptable to meet the need. The written explanation shall be made on a form provided
by the purchasing agent.

17.1.3 Negotiations. The purchasing office shall conduct negotiations, as appropriate, as to price,
delivery and quantity, in order to obtain the price most advantageous to the County.

17.2  Records of sole source procurements. The purchasing office shall maintain records of sole source
procurements for a minimum of three years — see section 31. The record of each such
procurement shall be a public record and shall contain: a) the contractor's name and address; b)
the amount and term of the contract; c) a listing of the services, construction, or items of tangible
personal property procured under the contract; and d) the justification for the procurement method
which shall include any written determinations and written approvals.

18. APPLICATION -- EMERGENCY PROCUREMENTS. The section applies to any procurement
made under emergency conditions that will not permit other source selection methods to be used.

18.1  Definition of Emergency Conditions. An emergency condition is a situation which creates a threat
to public health, welfare, safety or property such as may arise by reason of floods, epidemics, riots,
equipment failures or similar events. The existence of the emergency condition creates an
immediate and serious need for services, construction or items of tangible personal property that
cannot be met through normal procurement methods and the lack of which would seriously
threaten: a) the functioning of government; b) the preservation or protection of property; or c¢) the
health or safety of any person.

18.2  Scope of Emergency Procurements. Emergency procurements shall be limited to those services,
construction, or items of tangible personal property necessary to meet the emergency. Such
procurement shall not include the purchase or lease-purchase of heavy road equipment.

18.3  Authority to make Emergency Procurements. The purchasing office may make or authorize others
to make emergency procurements when an emergency condition arises; provided that emergency
procurements shall be made with such competition as is practicable under the circumstances.

18.4  Procedure. The procedure used shall be selected to assure that the required services, construction,
or items of tangible personal property are procured in time to meet the emergency. Given this
constraint, such competition as is practicable shall be obtained.

18.5  Written Determination Required. A written determination of the basis for the emergency
procurement shall be included in the procurement file.

18.6  Records of Emergency Procurements. The purchasing agent shall maintain records of emergency
procurements for a minimum of three years — see section 31. The record of each such
procurement shall be a public record and shall contain: a) the contractor's name and address; b)
the amount and term of the contract; ¢) a listing of the services, construction, or items of tangible

Page 18 of 34



personal property procured under the contract; and d) the justification for the procurement
method.

18.7  Construction under Emergency or Sole Source Procurement.

18.7.1  Notwithstanding the requirements of Sections 13-1-126 and 13-1-127 NMSA 1978, any
procurement including sole source and emergency procurement, other sections of statute apply
when procuring construction services. If an emergency or sole source procurement for
construction is declared, a state wage rate determination pursuant to Section 13-4-11 NMSA
1978 must be obtained if the construction contract is over $60,000 (Section 13-4-11 NMSA
1978). If the emergency occurs over a weekend or holiday you must advise the contractor that
the contractor will be required to pay state wage rates and the purchasing office must contact the
Labor Commissioner as soon as possible so the Department of Labor can issue a minimum
wage rate determination for the project. To obtain a state wage rate determination, contact: State
Labor Commissioner, P. O. Box 4218, 1596 Pacheco St., Santa Fe, NM 87503, 505-827-

6875 or via the internet at <www.state.nm.us/dol_pubwage.htmi>.

19. PROCUREMENT UNDER EXISTING CONTRACTS AUTHORIZED. The purchasing office
may contract for services, construction, or items of tangible personal property without the use of
competitive sealed bids or competitive sealed proposals as follows:

19.1  Ata price equal to or less than the contractor's current federal supply contract (GSA), providing
the contractor has indicated in writing a willingness to extend the contract's pricing, terms and
conditions to the County and the purchase order adequately identifies the contract relied upon; or

19.2  With a business which has a current price agreement with the purchasing office or the State
Purchasing Division of the General Services Department for the item, services, or construction
meeting the same standards and specifications as the items to be procured, if the following
conditions are met: a) the total quantity purchased does not exceed the quantity which may be
purchased under the applicable price agreement; and b) the purchase order adequately identifies
the price agreement relied upon.

19.3  Copies of Contracts and Price Agreements. The purchasing office shall retain for public
inspection and for the use of auditors a copy of each contract or current price agreement relied
upon to make purchases without seeking competitive bids.

19.4  Used Items. As defined in Section 13-1-155 NMSA 1978, the purchasing office, when procuring
used items of tangible personal property the estimated cost of which exceeds $5,000, shall request
bids as though the items were new, adding specifications that permit used items under conditions
to be outlined in the bid specifications, including but not limited to:

19.4.1  Requiring a written warranty for at least ninety days after date of delivery, and
19.4.2  Anindependent "certificate of working order"” by a qualified mechanic or appraiser.

19.5 Trade-in or exchange of used items. As defined in Section 13-1-156 NMSA 1978, the purchasing
office, when trading in or exchanging used items of tangible personal property the estimated
value of which exceeds $5,000 as part-payment on the procurement of new items of tangible
personal property, shall:

19.5.1  Have an independent appraisal made of the items to be traded in or exchanged. The appraisal
shall be in writing, shall be made part of the procurement file and shall be a public record. The
invitation for bids or request for proposals shall contain notice to prospective bidders or
offerors of the description and specifications of the items to be traded in or exchanged, the

Page 19 of 34


http://www.state.nm.us/dol_pubwage.html

appraised value of the items to be traded in or exchanged and the location where the items to be
traded in or exchanged may be inspected; or

19.5.2  Have two written quotes for purchase of the property at a specified price: a) award shall be
based upon the net bid. Bidders or offerors shall compute their net bid or offer by deducting
the appraised value or highest quote of the items to be traded in or exchanged from the gross
bid or offer on the new items of tangible personal property to be procured; b) if an amount
offered in trade is less than the appraised value or the highest quote but is found to be a fair
reflection of the current market, representative of the condition of the items of tangible personal
property and in the best interest of the agency, the bid or offer may be accepted; and c)
documentation of the terms of acceptance shall be in writing, shall be made a part of the
procurement file and shall be a public record.

20. CANCELLATIONOF SOLICITATIONS OR REJECTION OF BIDS OR PROPOSALS.
The provisions of sections 20 and 21 of this policy shall govern the cancellation of any solicitations
whether issued by the central purchasing office under competitive sealed bids, competitive sealed
proposals, small purchases, or any other source selection method, and rejection of bids or proposals
in whole or in part.

20.1  Policy. Any solicitation may be canceled or any or all bids or proposals may be rejected in whole
or in part when it is in the best interest of the County.

20.2  Cancellation of Solicitations or Rejection of All Bids or Proposals.

20.2.1  Prior to opening. As used in this section, "opening" means the date set for opening of bids or
receipt of proposals.

a) Prior to opening, a solicitation may be canceled in whole or in part when the purchasing
office makes a written determination that such action is in the County’s best interest for
reasons including but not limited to: 1) the services, construction, or items of tangible
personal property are no longer required; 2) the user agency no longer can reasonably
expect to fund the procurement; or 3) proposed amendments to the solicitation would
significantly change the nature of the procurement.

b) When a solicitation is canceled prior to opening, notice shall be sent to all businesses
solicited. The notice shall: 1) identify the solicitation; 2) briefly explain the reason for
cancellation; and 3) where appropriate, explain that an opportunity will be given to
compete on any resolicitation or any future procurement of similar services, construction,
or items of tangible personal property.

20.2.2 After opening.

a) After opening but prior to award, all bids or proposals may be rejected in whole or in part
when the purchasing office makes a written determination that such action is in the
County’s best interest for reasons including but not limited to: 1) all of the bids and
proposals are non-responsive; 2) the services, construction, or items of tangible personal
property are no longer required; 3) ambiguous or otherwise inadequate specifications were
part of the solicitation; 4) the solicitation did not provide for consideration of all factors of
significance to the recipients/ subrecipients; 5) prices exceed available funds and it would

not be appropriate to adjust quantities to come within available funds; 6) all otherwise
acceptable bids or proposals received are at clearly unreasonable prices; or 7) there is
reason to believe that the bids or proposals may not have been independently arrived at in
open competition, may have been collusive, or may have been submitted in bad faith.

Page 20 of 34



21.

21.1

2111

21.1.2

21.1.3

21.2

21.2.1

21.2.2

21.2.3

22.

b) A notice of rejection should be sent to all businesses that submitted bids or proposals, and it
shall conform to subsection 20.2.1.a) of this section.

REJECTION OF INDIVIDUAL BIDS OR PROPOSALS.

Reasons for rejection.

Bids. As used in this section, "bid" includes both competitive sealed bids and small purchase
quotations. Reasons for rejecting a bid shall include but are not limited to: a) the business that
submitted the bid is non-responsible as determined under section 22 of this policy; b) the bid is
not responsive; or ¢) the service, construction, or item of tangible personal property offered in
the bid is unacceptable by reason of its failure to meet the requirements of the specifications, or
permissible alternates, or other acceptability criteria set forth in the IFB.

Proposals. As used in this section, "proposal” includes both competitive sealed proposals and
small purchase offers. Unless the solicitation states otherwise, proposals need not be
unconditionally accepted without alteration or correction and a user agency stated requirements
may be revised or clarified after proposals are submitted. This flexibility must be considered in
determining whether reasons exist for rejecting all or any part of a proposal. Reasons for
rejecting proposals include but are not limited to: a) the business that submitted the proposal is
non-responsible as determined under section 23 of this policy; b) the proposal is not responsive;
or ¢) the proposed price is clearly unreasonable; or d) the proposal failed to adequately address
one or more material mandatory requirements as set forth in the request for proposals.

Written determination required. The purchasing office shall prepare a written determination that
contains the reasons for the rejection of an individual bid or proposal. The determination shall
be made a part of the procurement file.

"All or None ” bids. When the term "all or none" is used:

By the purchaser in a solicitation. A solicitation may require bidders to submit bids or offers on
all items listed in the solicitation, or may identify certain groups of items in which all items
must be bid. If the solicitation is properly so limited, a bidder's failure to bid all items identified
as "all or none" items may render the bid non-responsive.

By the bidder or offeror, and not the purchaser. If the bidder restricts acceptance of the bid, or
a portion thereof, by such a statement as "all or none", the bidder has "qualified" the offer
which may render the bid as non-responsive.

In instances as stated above, such a bid or offer may be accepted only if the purchasing office
issues a determination setting forth the basis for accepting the bid or offer as being in the best
interest of the County. Also in both, instances, the bid or offer is only eligible for award if it is
the overall low bid for the item or items so restricted.

RECEIPT, INSPECTION, ACCEPTANCE OR REJECTION OF DELIVERIES. The County

or user agency is responsible for inspecting and accepting or rejecting deliveries.

22.1

22.2

22.3

The County or user agency shall determine whether the quantity is as specified in the purchase
order or contract;

The County or user agency shall determine whether the quality conforms to the specifications
referred to or included in the purchase order or contract;

If inspection reveals that the delivery does not meet or conform to the quantity or quality specified

Page 21 of 34



22.4

224.1

22.5

in the purchase order or contract, the County or user agency shall notify the vendor that the
delivery has been rejected and shall order the vendor to promptly make a satisfactory replacement
or supplementary delivery;

In case the vendor fails to comply, the County or user agency shall promptly file a purchasing
complaint with the purchasing office. Also, in case the vendor fails to comply, the County or user
agency shall have no obligation to pay for the nonconforming items of tangible personal property;

If the delivery does conform to the quantity and quality specified in the purchase order or
contract, the County or user entity shall certify that delivery has been completed and is
satisfactory.

Summary. Notwithstanding the requirements of section 22 of this policy, if, after delivery and
acceptance of goods, the goods or a portion thereof are later found to be non-conforming to the
specifications referred to or included in the purchase order or contract, such acceptance does not
waive any rights or remedies which are otherwise granted to the buyer in accordance with other
applicable laws of New Mexico.

23. RESPONSIBILITY OF BIDDERS AND OFFERORS. A determination of responsibility or
non-responsibility shall be governed by this section 23.

23.1

23.1.1

23.1.2

23.1.3

23.2

23.2.1

Standards of responsibility.

Standards for bidders. Factors to be considered in determining whether the standard of
responsibility has been met include whether a bidder has: a) submitted a responsive bid; b)
adequate financial resources, production or service facilities, personnel, service reputation and
experience to make satisfactory delivery of the services, construction, or items of tangible
personal property described in the IFB; ¢) a satisfactory record of performance; d) a satisfactory
record of integrity; e) qualified legally to contract with the County; and ) supplied all
necessary information and data in connection with any inquiry concerning responsibility.

Standards for Offerors. Factors to be considered in determining whether the standard of
responsibility has been met include whether an offeror has: a) submitted a responsive proposal;
b) adequate financial resources, production or service facilities, personnel, service reputation
and experience to make satisfactory delivery of the services or items of tangible personal
property described in the proposal; ¢) a satisfactory record of performance; d) a satisfactory
record of integrity; e) qualified legally to contract with the County; and f) supplied all
necessary information and data in connection with any inquiry concerning responsibility.

Ability to meet Standards. A bidder or offeror may demonstrate the availability of adequate
financial resources, production or service facilities, personnel and experience by submitting,
upon request: a) evidence that the bidder or offeror possesses the necessary items; b) acceptable
plans to subcontract for the necessary items; or ¢) a documented commitment from, or explicit
arrangement with, a satisfactory source to provide the necessary items.

Inquiry by Purchasing Agent. Before awarding a contract, the Purchasing Agent or procurement
manager must be satisfied that the bidder or offeror is responsible. Therefore, a bidder or offeror
shall supply information and data requested by the Purchasing Agent concerning the responsibility
of the bidder or offeror. The unreasonable failure of a bidder or offeror to promptly

supply information or data in connection with such an inquiry is grounds for a determination that
the bidder or offeror is not responsible.

Determination Required. If a bidder or offeror who otherwise would have been awarded a
contract is found to be non-responsible, a written determination, setting forth the basis of the

Page 22 of 34



finding, shall be prepared by the purchasing office. The written determination shall be made
part of the procurement file, and a copy of the determination shall be sent to the non-
responsible bidder or offeror.

24. APPLICABILITY -- PROTESTS. The provisions of this section apply to all protests filed with
the purchasing office.

241

24.2

24.2.1

24.2.2

24.2.3

24.2.4

24.3

24.3.1

24.3.2

24.4
24.4.1

24.4.2

Right to Protest. Any bidder or offeror who is aggrieved in connection with a solicitation or
award of a contract may protest to the County Manager through the purchasing office.

Filing of Protest.

Protest must be written. Protests must be in writing and addressed to the Purchasing Agent.

Contents. The protest shall: a) include the name and address of the protestant; b) include the
solicitation number; c) contain a statement of the grounds for protest; d) include supporting
exhibits, evidence or documents to substantiate any claim unless not available within the filing
time in which case the expected availability date shall be indicated; and e) specify the ruling
requested from the central purchasing office.

Pleadings. No formal pleading is required to initiate a protest, but protests should be concise,
logically arranged, and direct.

Time limit. Protests shall be submitted within fifteen calendar days after knowledge of the
facts or occurrences giving rise to the protest. Any person or business that has been sent written
notice of any fact or occurrence is presumed to have knowledge of the fact or occurrence.

Procurements after Protest.

In the event of a timely protest, as defined in this section, the purchasing office shall not
proceed further with the procurement unless the office makes a written determination that the
award of the contract is necessary to protect substantial interests of the County. Such written
determination should set forth the basis for the determination. As used in this section, the point
in time in which a contract is awarded is that point at which a legally enforceable contract is
created unless the context clearly requires a different meaning.

Procurement shall not be halted after a contract has been awarded merely because a protest has
been filed. After a contract has been awarded, the purchasing office may, in its sole discretion,
halt procurement in exceptional circumstances or for good cause shown.

Protest procedure.

Upon the filing of a timely protest, the purchasing office shall give notice of the protest to the
contractor if award has been made or, if no award has been made, to all bidders or Offerors who
appear to have a substantial and reasonable prospect of receiving an award if the protest is
denied.

The protestant and every business that receives notice pursuant to this section will
automatically be parties to any further proceedings before the purchasing office. In addition,

any other person or business may move to intervene at any time during the course of the
proceedings. Intervention will be granted upon a showing of a substantial interest in the outcome
of the proceedings. Interveners shall accept the status of the proceedings at the time of their
intervention; in particular, they must abide by all prior rulings and accept all previously
established time schedules. The purchasing office and all employees thereof, are not parties to
the proceedings.

Page 23 of 34



24.4.3

24.4.4

245
2451

245.2

24.6

24.6.1

24.6.2

The purchasing office may take any action reasonably necessary to resolve a protest. Such
actions include, but are not limited to, the following: a) issue a final written determination
summarily dismissing the protest; b) obtain information from the staff of the central purchasing;
C) require parties to produce for examination information or witnesses under their control; d)
require parties to express their positions on any issues in the proceedings; e) require

parties to submit legal briefs on any issues in the proceeding; f) establish procedural schedules;
g) regulate the course of the proceedings and the conduct of any participants; h) receive, policy
on, exclude or limit evidence; i) take official notice of any fact that is among the traditional
matters of official or administrative notice; j) conduct hearings; and k) take any action
reasonably necessary to compel discovery or control the conduct of parties or witnesses.

Protest Discovery. Upon written request of any party, or upon its own motion, the purchasing
office may require parties to comply with discovery requests.

Protest Hearings.

Hearings will be held only when the purchasing office determines that substantial material
factual issues are present that cannot be resolved satisfactorily through an examination of
written documents in the record. Any party may request a hearing, but such requests shall be
deemed denied unless specifically granted.

Hearings, when held, should be as informal as practicable under the circumstances, but the
purchasing office has absolute discretion in establishing the degree of formality for any
particular hearing. In no event is the purchasing office required to adhere to formal policies of
evidence or procedure.

Resolution.

The purchasing office shall promptly issue a written determination relating to the protest. The
determination shall a) state the reasons for the action taken; and b) inform the protestant of the
right to judicial review of the determination pursuant to Section 13-1-183 NMSA 1978.

A copy of the written determination shall be sent immediately by certified mail, return receipt
requested, to each of the parties.

24.7 Relief.

24.7.1

Prior to award. If, prior to award, the purchasing office makes a written determination that a
solicitation or proposed award of a contract is in violation of law, then the solicitation or
proposed award shall be canceled.

24.7.2 After award.

a) No fraud or bad faith. If, after an award, the purchasing office makes a written
determination that a solicitation or award of a contract is in violation of law and that the
business awarded the contract has not acted fraudulently or in bad faith: a) the contract may
be ratified, affirmed or revised to comply with law, provided that a written determination is
made that doing so is in the best interest of the County; or b) the contract may be terminated,
and the business awarded the contract shall be compensated for the actual expenses
reasonably incurred under the contract plus a reasonable profit prior to termination.

b) Fraud or bad faith. If, after an award, the purchasing office makes a written determination
that a solicitation or award of a contract is in violation of law and that the business awarded
the contract has acted fraudulently or in bad faith, the contract shall be canceled.

c) Relief not allowed. Except as provided subsection 24.7.2 a), the purchasing office shall not

Page 24 of 34



24.8
248.1

24.8.2

24.8.3

24.9

249.1

24.9.2

24.9.3

2494

24.10
24.10.1

24.10.2

2411
24111

award money damages or attorneys' fees.

Motion for Reconsideration.
Motion. A motion for reconsideration of a written determination issued pursuant to this policy
may be filed by any party or by any user agency involved in the procurement. The motion for
reconsideration shall contain a detailed statement of the factual and legal grounds upon which
reversal or modification of the determination is deemed warranted, specifying any errors of law
made, or information not previously considered.

When to file. A motion for reconsideration shall be filed not later than seven calendar days
after receipt of the written determination.

Response to motion. The purchasing office shall promptly issue a written response to the
motion for reconsideration. A copy of the written response shall be sent immediately by
certified mail, return receipt requested, to each of the parties.

Designee.
Designation. At any point during a protest proceeding, the purchasing office may appoint a
designee as defined in Section 13-1-51 NMSA 1978 to preside over the proceeding. The
designee will have all of the powers described in section 24 of this policy except the power to
issue a written determination under subsection 24.6 of this policy. The designee only has
authority to recommend a resolution to the purchasing office under subsection 24.6 of this

policy.

Who may be designated? Any person, other than the Purchasing Agent, procurement manager or
other person not directly involved in the procurement may serve as a designee. The Business
Manager may be designated by the Purchasing Agent as the designee.

Recommended written determination. A designee shall present a recommended written
resolution to the purchasing office and mail a copy to each of the parties. No party may appeal
from the recommended resolution of the designee.

Action by County Manager. The County Manager shall approve, disapprove or modify the
recommended resolution of the designee in writing. Such approval, disapproval or modification
shall be the written determination required by subsection 24.6 of this policy. Any party may
file a motion for reconsideration of the written determination pursuant to section 24.8 of this

policy.

Final Determination.
No motion for reconsideration. In those proceedings in which no motion for reconsideration is
filed, the written determination issued pursuant to subsection 24.6 of this policy shall be the

final determination for purposes of the time limits for seeking judicial review under Section 13-
1-183 NMSA 1978.

Motion for reconsideration. In those proceedings in which a motion for reconsideration is filed,
the written response to the motion issued pursuant to subsection 24.8 of this policy shall be the
final determination for purposes of the time limits for seeking judicial review under Section 13-
1-183 NMSA 1978.

Copies of Communications.
Copies to be provided to parties. Each party to a protest proceeding shall certify that it has
provided every other party with copies of all documents or correspondence addressed or
delivered to the purchasing office.

Page 25 of 34



24.11.2 Ex-parte communications. No party shall submit to the central purchasing office, ex-parte, any

material, evidence, explanation, analysis, or advice, whether written or oral, regarding any
matter at issue in a protest.

24.11.3 Counting Days. In computing any period of time prescribed in section 24 of this policy, the day

25.

251

25.2

26.
26.1

26.2

27.

28.

29.

of the event from which the designated period of time begins to run shall not be included, but
the last day of the period shall be included unless it is a Saturday, a Sunday, or a legal holiday,
in which event the period shall run to the end of the next business day.

PROCUREMENT OVERSIGHT. The County and its user agency shall conduct and document
oversight to ensure compliance with the procurement standards established in applicable federal
regulations, OMB circulars, the Code and this policy.

Procurement system. The County and it user agency shall maintain an administration system that
ensures that contractors, subrecipients and vendors perform in accordance with the terms,
conditions and specifications of their awards. Such system shall include the maintenance of
records sufficient to detail the significant history of the procurement. These records shall include,
but are not limited to, rationale for method of procurement, selection of agreement type, awardee
selection or rejection, and the basis for the agreement price.

Contract awards. The County and it user agency shall adhere to applicable OMB circulars and
the Code in selecting and awarding contracts, grants and subgrants.

PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS.
Performance and (labor and material) payments bonds. Pursuant to Section 13-4-18 NMSA 1978
performance and payments bonds are required if the construction contract is over $25,000. The
bonds may be required if a project is under $25,000 at the County’s sole and complete discretion.
If a contractor fails to deliver the required bonds, the contractor’s bid shall be rejected; its bid
security shall be enforced to the extent of actual damages. See Section 13-4-18A(1) & (2) for
approved listing of bonding companies.

Bonding of Subcontractors. A subcontractor shall provide a performance and payment bond on a
public works building project if the subcontractor’s contract for work to be performed on a
project is $50,000 or more (Section 13-1-21 NMSA 1978).

NONDISCRIMINATION. Federal grant recipients, subrecipients, contractors and subcontractors
shall comply with the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity provisions of the enabling Act,
including Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation
Act of 1973, as amended; the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended; Title 1X of the

Education Amendments of 1972, as amended; the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, and any
amendments thereto; and all applicable requirements imposed pursuant to regulations implementing
those laws. The applicable federal funding agency and the state administrative entity reserve the
right to seek judicial enforcement of this assurance.

RESTRICTIONS AND CERTIFICATIONS. The County, its contractors and subgrantees shall
comply with: the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1998 (Pub L. 100-690, Title V, Sub Title D); Federal
Restrictions on Lobbying (20 CFR 93.100); restrictions on the use of funds involving sectarian
activities; and certification regarding debarment, suspension and voluntary exclusion-lower tier
covered transactions (29 CFR 98, OMB Circular A-133, and Executive Order 12549); certification
regarding conflict of interest; and tobacco-free certification, if applicable and County policy.

UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVEREQUIREMENTS FOR GRANTS AND CONTRACTS.
Page 26 of 34



30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.
36.1

36.2

37.
37.1

Contractor shall comply with the appropriate Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and
Contracts as promulgated in the Federal Common Rule, including but not limited to OMB circulars
A-87, A-102, and A-122.

NON-EXPENDABLE SUPPLIES AND PROPERTY. Any nonexpendable supplies and property
referred to as tangible personal property in this policy acquired using County funds and valued over
$1,000 is a fixed assets property of the County. Staff shall notify the purchasing office when
authorized items over $1,000 are purchased and received so the item can properly be tagged and
inventoried.

SALE OR LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY. The selling or leasing of real property; and the sale,
exchange and gift of property is governed by other statutory requirements and not by the Code or
this policy, but are governed by Sections 13-6-1 through 13-6-4 NMSA 1978.

RECORDS RETENTION. The purchasing office shall be responsible for retention of all
procurement records. The records shall be retained for a period of a minimum of 3 years from the
date of final payment under the contract/subgrant. Records shall be retained beyond the 3 year
period if audit findings have not been resolved, an independent audit is pending completion, or if
requested by the state administrative entity or applicable funding authority or required for pending
litigation. In such cases, records shall be retained until such audit findings or litigation is resolved.

PERSONAL USE PROHIBITED. A county employee, public officer or volunteer is prohibited
from making purchases under County procurement for the purpose of personal or private use for
themselves or non-County individuals.

INTERPRETATIONS. Any supplements or revisions to this policy will be issued through
interpretive memorandum approved by the County Manager. The County Manager shall report to
the County Commission on a quarterly basis regarding such interpretative memoranda. Substantive
changes to this Policy shall be through supplemental resolution approved by the County
Commission. The provisions of this policy shall be held to be minimum requirements. Whenever
the requirements of this policy are at variance with the requirements of any other lawfully adopted
rules, regulations or laws, the more restrictive or that imposing the higher standard shall govern.

USE OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION PROHIBITED. It is unlawful for any state
agency or local public body employee or former employee knowingly to use confidential
information for actual or anticipated personal gain or for the actual or anticipated personal gain of
any other person.

PENALTIES.

Any person, firm or corporation that knowingly violates any provision of the Procurement Code
[813-1-28 NMSA 1978] is subject to a civil penalty of not more than one thousand dollars
($1,000) for each procurement in violation of any provision of the Procurement Code. The
attorney general or the district attorney in the jurisdiction in which the violation occurs is
empowered to bring a civil action for the enforcement of any provision of the Procurement Code.
Any penalty collected under the provisions of this section shall be credited to the general fund of
the County.

Violation of this policy may subject a County employee to disciplinary action, including but not
limited to suspension, demotion or termination, subject to the County Personnel Policy.

CONTRACT MATTERS
Uniform Contract Clauses (13-1-170)
A. The County shall require that contracts include uniform clauses following terms and

Page 27 of 34



conditions are included within each of the County’s contracts and Purchase

Orders. Modifications to these terms and conditions may only be made by the CPD, in

consultation with the County Manager and County Attorney, and only after the CPD makes

a written determination in the procurement file explaining the basis for each modification,

and which determination further identifies how accepting the proposed change advances the

interests of the County:

1. Payment is subject to availability of funds by the Board of County Commissioners. All
invoices MUST BE received by the County no later than thirty (30) days after the
termination of the Fiscal Year in which the services were delivered. Invoices received
after such date WILL NOT BE PAID.

2. If the County finds that the services are not acceptable, within thirty days after
the date of receipt of written notice from the Contractor that payment is
requested, it shall provide the Contractor a letter of exception explaining the
defect or objection to the services, and outlining steps the Contractor may take to
provide remedial action. Upon certification by the County that the services have
been received and accepted, payment shall be tendered to the Contractor within
thirty days after the date of acceptance. If payment is made by mail, the payment
shall be deemed tendered on the date it is postmarked. However, the County
shall not incur late charges, interest, or penalties for failure to make payment
within the time specified herein. providing for termination,

3. The payment of taxes due for any money received under this Agreement shall be the
Contractor's sole responsibility and shall be reported under the Contractor's Federal and
State tax identification number(s).

4. This Agreement may be terminated by either of the parties hereto upon written notice
delivered to the other party at least thirty (30) days prior to the intended date of
termination. Except as otherwise allowed or provided under this Agreement, the
County’s sole liability upon such termination shall be to pay for acceptable work
performed prior to the Contractor’s receipt of the notice of termination, if the County is
the terminating party, or the Contractor’s sending of the notice of termination, if the
Contractor is the terminating party; provided, however, that a notice of termination shall
not nullify or otherwise affect either party’s liability for pre-termination defaults under
or breaches of this Agreement. The Contractor shall submit an invoice for such work
within thirty (30) days of receiving or sending the notice of
termination. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement may be terminated
immediately upon written notice to the Contractor if the Contractor becomes unable to
perform the services contracted for, as determined by the County or if, during the term
of this Agreement, the Contractor or any of its officers, employees or agents is indicted
for fraud, embezzlement or other crime due to misuse of government funds or due to the
Appropriations paragraph herein. THIS PROVISION IS NOT EXCLUSIVE AND
DOES NOT WAIVE THE COUNTY’s OTHER LEGAL RIGHTS AND REMEDIES
CAUSED BY THE CONTRACTOR'S DEFAULT/BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT.

5. Termination Management. Immediately upon receipt by either the County or the
Contractor of notice of termination of this Agreement, the Contractor shall: 1) not incur
any further obligations for salaries, services or any other expenditure of funds under this
Agreement without written approval of the County; 2) comply with all directives issued
by the County in the notice of termination as to the performance of work under this
Agreement; and 3) take such action as the County shall direct for the protection,
preservation, retention or transfer of all property titled to the County and records
generated under this Agreement. Any non-expendable personal property or equipment
provided to or purchased by the Contractor with contract funds shall become property of
the County upon termination and shall be submitted to the County as soon as
practicable.

Page 28 of 34



6.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Appropriations. The terms of this Agreement are contingent upon sufficient

appropriations and authorization being made by the Board of County Commissioners

for the performance of this Agreement. If sufficient appropriations and authorization

are not made by the Board of County Commissioners, this Agreement shall terminate

immediately upon written notice being given by the County to the Contractor. The

County's decision as to whether sufficient appropriations are available shall be accepted

by the Contractor and shall be final. If the County proposes an amendment to the

Agreement to unilaterally reduce funding, the Contractor shall have the option to

terminate the Agreement or to agree to the reduced funding, within thirty (30) days of

receipt of the proposed amendment.

Status of Contractor (if applicable). The Contractor and its agents and employees are

independent contractors performing professional services for the County and are not

employees of the County of Cibola. The Contractor and its agents and employees shall
not accrue leave, retirement, insurance, bonding, use of county vehicles, or any other
benefits afforded to employees of the County of Cibola as a result of this

Agreement. The Contractor acknowledges that all sums received hereunder are

reportable by the Contractor for tax purposes, including without limitation, self-

employment and business income tax. The Contractor agrees not to purport to bind the

County of Cibola unless the Contractor has express written authority to do so, and then

only within the strict limits of that authority.

Assignment (if applicable). The Contractor shall not assign or transfer any interest in this

Agreement or assign any claims for money due or to become due under this Agreement

without the prior written approval of the County.

Subcontracting (if applicable). The Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the

services to be performed under this Agreement without the prior written approval of the

County. No such subcontract shall relieve the primary Contractor from its obligations

and liabilities under this Agreement, nor shall any subcontract obligate direct payment

from the County. In all cases, the contractor is solely responsible for fulfillment of this

Agreement.

Release. Final payment of the amounts due under this Agreement shall operate as a release

of the procuring agency of the County, its officers and employees, and the County of

Cibola from all liabilities, claims and obligations whatsoever arising from or under this

Agreement.

Confidentiality. (if applicable). Any confidential information provided to or developed

by the Contractor in the performance of this Agreement shall be kept confidential and

shall not be made available to any individual or organization by the Contractor without
the prior written approval of the County.

Product of Service — Copyright (if applicable). All materials developed or acquired by

the Contractor under this Agreement shall become the property of the County of Cibola

and shall be delivered to the County no later than the termination date of this

Agreement. Nothing developed or produced, in whole or in part, by the Contractor

under this Agreement shall be the subject of an application for copyright or other claim

of ownership by or on behalf of the Contractor.

Conflict of Interest; Governmental Conduct Act.

A. The Contractor represents and warrants that it presently has no interest and, during the
term of this Agreement, shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would
conflict in any manner or degree with the performance or services required under the
Agreement.

B. The Contractor further represents and warrants that it has complied with, and, during
the term of this Agreement, will continue to comply with, and that this Agreement
complies with all applicable provisions of the Governmental Conduct Act, Chapter 10,

Page 29 of 34



Article 16 NMSA 1978. Without in anyway limiting the generality of the foregoing,

the Contractor specifically represents and warrants that:

1) inaccordance with Section 10-16-4.3 NMSA 1978, the Contractor does not
employ, has not employed, and will not employ during the term of this Agreement
any County employee while such employee was or is employed by the County and
participating directly or indirectly in the County’s contracting process;

2) this Agreement complies with Section 10-16-7(B) NMSA 1978 because (i) the
Contractor is not a public officer or employee of the County; (ii) the Contractor is
not a member of the family of a public officer or employee of the County; (iii) the
Contractor is not a business in which a public officer or employee or the family of
a public officer or employee has a substantial interest; or (iv) if the Contractor is a
public officer or employee of the County, a member of the family of a public
officer or employee of the County, or a business in which a public officer or
employee of the County or the family of a public officer or employee of the
County has a substantial interest, public notice was given as required by Section
10-16-7(B) NMSA 1978 and this Agreement was awarded pursuant to a
competitive process;

3) inaccordance with Section 10-16-8(C) NMSA 1978, (i) the Contractor is not, and
has not been represented by, a person who has been a public officer or employee
of the County within the preceding year and whose official act directly resulted in
this Agreement and (ii) the Contractor is not, and has not been assisted in any way
regarding this transaction by, a former public officer or employee of the County
whose official act, while in County employment, directly resulted in the County's
making this Agreement;

4) in accordance with Section 10-16-13 NMSA 1978, the Contractor has not directly
participated in the preparation of specifications, qualifications or evaluation
criteria for this Agreement or any procurement related to this Agreement; and

5) inaccordance with Section 10-16-3 and Section 10-16-13.3 NMSA 1978, the
Contractor has not contributed, and during the term of this Agreement shall not
contribute, anything of value to a public officer or employee of the County

C. Contractor’s representations and warranties in Paragraphs A and B of this Article 12
are material representations of fact upon which the County relied when this Agreement
was entered into by the parties. Contractor shall provide immediate written notice to
the County if, at any time during the term of this Agreement, Contractor learns that

Contractor’s representations and warranties are erroneous on the effective date of the

Agreement or have become erroneous by reason of new or changed circumstances. If it

is later determined that Contractor’s representations and warranties were erroneous on

the effective date of the Agreement or have become erroneous by reason of new or
changed circumstances, in addition to other remedies available to the County and
notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, the County may
immediately terminate the Agreement.
14. Amendment. This Agreement shall not be altered, changed or amended except by
instrument in writing executed by the parties hereto and all other required signatories.
15. Merger. This Agreement incorporates all the Agreements, covenants and understandings
between the parties hereto concerning the subject matter hereof, and all such covenants,
Agreements and understandings have been merged into this written Agreement. No prior

Page 30 of 34



16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Agreement or understanding, oral or otherwise, of the parties or their agents shall be valid
or enforceable unless embodied in this Agreement

Penalties for violation of law. The Procurement Code, Sections 13-1-28 through 13-1-199,
NMSA 1978, imposes civil and criminal penalties for its violation. In addition, the New
Mexico criminal statutes impose felony penalties for illegal bribes, gratuities and
kickbacks.

Equal Opportunity Compliance. The Contractor agrees to abide by all federal, state and
county laws and rules and regulations, pertaining to equal employment opportunity. In
accordance with all such laws, the Contractor assures that no person in the United States
shall, on the grounds of race, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, age, physical or
mental handicap, or serious medical condition, spousal affiliation, sexual orientation or
gender identity, be excluded from employment with or participation in, be denied the
benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity
performed under this Agreement. If Contractor is found not to be in compliance with these
requirements during the life of this Agreement, Contractor agrees to take appropriate steps
to correct these deficiencies.

Applicable Law. In any action, suit or legal dispute arising from this Agreement, the
Contractor agrees that the laws of the State of New Mexico shall govern and that venue
will lie in the Seventh Judicial District Court in Cibola County. By execution of this
Agreement, Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the jurisdiction of the courts of the
State of New Mexico over any and all lawsuits arising under or out of any term of this
Agreement.

Workers Compensation. The Contractor agrees to comply with state laws and rules
applicable to workers compensation benefits for its employees. If the Contractor fails to
comply with the Workers Compensation Act and applicable rules when required to do so,
this Agreement may be terminated by the County.

Records and Financial Audit. The Contractor shall maintain detailed time and expenditure
records that indicate the date; time, nature and cost of services rendered during the
Agreement’s term and effect and retain them for a period of three (3) years from the date
of final payment under this Agreement. The records shall be subject to inspection by the
County, the Department of Finance and Administration and the State Auditor. The County
shall have the right to audit billings both before and after payment. Payment under this
Agreement shall not foreclose the right of the County to recover excessive or illegal
payments

Disclaimer and Hold Harmless. Cibola County shall not be liable to the Contractor, or the
Contractor’s successors, heirs, administrators, or assigns, for any loss, damage, or injury,
whether to Contractor's person or property, occurring in connection with Contractor's
performance of Contractor's duties according to this Agreement. Contractor shall hold the
Cibola County harmless from all loss, damage, and injury, including court costs and
attorney fees, incurred by Cibola County in connection with the performance
Indemnification. The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the County of
Cibola from all actions, proceeding, claims, demands, costs, damages, attorneys’ fees and
all other liabilities and expenses of any kind from any source which may arise out of the
performance of this Agreement, caused by the negligent act or failure to act of the
Contractor, its officers, employees, servants, subcontractors or agents, or if caused by the
actions of any client of the Contractor resulting in injury or damage to persons or property

Page 31 of 34



23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

during the time when the Contractor or any officer, agent, employee, servant or
subcontractor thereof has or is performing services pursuant to this Agreement. In the
event that any action, suit or proceeding related to the services performed by the
Contractor or any officer, agent, employee, servant or subcontractor under this Agreement
is brought against the Contractor, the Contractor shall, as soon as practicable but no later
than two (2) days after it receives notice thereof, notify the legal counsel of the County of
Cibola and the County’s insurer by certified mail.

Invalid Term or Condition. If any term or condition of this Agreement shall be held invalid
or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected and shall be valid
and enforceable.

Enforcement of Agreement. A party's failure to require strict performance of any provision
of this Agreement shall not waive or diminish that party's right thereafter to demand strict
compliance with that or any other provision. No waiver by a party of any of its rights
under this Agreement shall be effective unless express and in writing, and no effective
waiver by a party of any of its rights shall be effective to waive any other rights.
Authority. If Contractor is other than a natural person, the individual(s) signing this
Agreement on behalf of Contractor represents and warrants that he or she has the power
and authority to bind Contractor, and that no further action, resolution, or approval from
Contractor is necessary to enter into a binding contract.

Lobbying (if applicable).No federal appropriated funds can be paid or will be paid, by or
on behalf of the CONTRACTOR, or any person for influencing or attempting to influence
an officer or employee of any County, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of
any Federal contract, or the making of any Federal grant, the making of any federal loan,
the entering into of any cooperative agreement, or modification of any Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds
have been paid or will be paid to any person influencing or attempting to influence an
officer or employee of any County, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection of this federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall complete and submit
Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its
instructions.

Approval of Contractor Personnel (if applicable). Personnel proposed in the Contractor's
written proposal to the County are considered material to any work performed under this
Agreement. No changes of personnel will be made by the Contractor without prior written
consent of the procuring agency of the County. Replacement of any Contractor personnel,
if approved, shall be with personnel of equal ability, experience and qualifications. The
Contractor will be responsible for any expenses incurred in familiarizing the replacement
personnel to insure their being productive to the project immediately upon receiving
assignments. Approval of replacement personnel shall not be unreasonably withheld. The
procuring agency of the County shall retain the right to request the removal of any of the
Contractor's personnel at any time.

Survival (if applicable). The “Patent, Copyright, Trademark, and Trade Secret
Indemnification” and “Indemnification” provisions of the Agreement shall survive the
expiration of this agreement. Software licenses, leases, maintenance and any other
unexpired agreements that were entered into under the terms and conditions of this

Page 32 of 34



29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

agreement shall survive this agreement.

Succession. This agreement shall extend to and be binding upon the successors and assigns
of the parties.

Force Majeure. A party shall be excused from performance under this agreement for any
period that the party is prevented from performing as a result of an act of God, strike, war,
civil disturbance, epidemic, or court order, provided that the party has prudently and
promptly acted to take any and all steps that are within the party's control to ensure
performance. Subject to this provision, such non-performance shall not be deemed a
default or a ground for termination.

Mediation. In the event a dispute arises as to the rights and obligations among the parties
hereto, the parties agree to attempt to resolve the dispute through mediation as a condition
precedent to seeking legal and equitable remedies. The parties agree to evenly split the
costs of any such mediation services. The parties shall mutually agree upon the choice of
mediator. In the event the parties have not agreed upon a mediator within twenty (20) days
of written notice to the other regarding the dispute, then a list of seven potential mediators
will be obtained from the County’s insurer and the parties shall utilize a striking process
until a mediator is agreed upon.

Notice to Proceed. It is expressly understood that this Agreement is not binding upon the
County until it is executed by the Board of County Commissioners after voting on the
contract at a public meeting. Further, the Contractor is not to proceed with its obligations
under the Agreement until the Contractor has received a fully signed copy of the
Agreement.

Attorney’s Fees. In the event this Agreement results in dispute, mediation, litigation, or
settlement between the parties to this Agreement, the prevailing party of such action shall
NOT be entitled to an award of attorneys' fees and court costs.

Cooperation. All parties hereto will fully cooperate with the other and their respective
counsel, accountant, and agents in connection with any steps required to be taken under
this Agreement.

Order of Precedence. The following order of precedence shall apply: Any contract
amendment(s), in reverse chronological order; then the contract itself.

Patent, Copyright, Trademark and Trade Secret Indemnification (if applicable). The
contractor shall defend, at its own expense, the County of Cibola against any claim that
any product or service provided under this agreement infringes any patent, copyright or
trademark in the United States or Puerto Rico, and shall pay all costs, damages and
attorneys' fees that a court finally awards as a result of any such claim. In addition, if any
third party obtains a judgment against the County of Cibola based upon the contractor's
trade secret infringement relating to any product or service provided under this agreement,
the contractor agrees to reimburse the County of Cibola for all costs, attorneys' fees and
the amount of the judgment. To qualify for such defense and/or payment, the County of
Cibola shall: i. give the contractor prompt written notice of any claim; ii. allow the
contractor to control the defense or settlement of the claim; and iii. cooperate with the
contractor in a reasonable way to facilitate the defense or settlement of the claim. If any
product or service becomes, or in the contractor's opinion is likely to become the subject of
a claim of infringement, the contractor shall at its option and expense: i.. provide a
procuring agency of the County the right to continue using the product or service; ii.
replace or modify the product or service so that it becomes non-infringing; or iii. accept

Page 33 of 34



37.

38.

the return of the product or service and refund an amount equal to the depreciated value of
the returned product or service, less the unpaid portion of the purchase price and any other
amounts which are due to the contractor. The contractor's obligation will be void as to any
product or service modified by the procuring agency of the County to the extent such
modification is the cause of the claim.

Professional Liability Insurance (if applicable). Contractor agrees to maintain in full force
throughout the duration of the Agreement a professional liability insurance policy with a
minimum coverage as deemed most advantageous by the County.

Notices. Any notice required to be given to either party by this Agreement shall be in
writing and shall be delivered in person, by courier service or by U.S. mail, either first
class or certified, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, as follows:

To the County: County Manager //700 East Roosevelt // Grants, NM 87031

To the Contractor: To the individual and address identified by the Contractor.

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 28™ day of September 2023.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

DANIEL TORREZ, CHAIRMAN MARTHA GARCIA, 157 VICE-CHAIR

CHRISTINE LOWERY, 2"° VICE-CHAIR ROBERT WINDHORST, COMMISSIONER

ATTEST BY:

RALPH LUCERO, COMMISSIONER

MICHELLE E. DOMINGUEZ, CIBOLA COUNTY CLERK

Page 34 of 34



Kk
A s

10c. New Business

Intergovernmental
Agreement (IGA)

Milan Swimming Pool-$75,000




INTERGOVERNMENTAL
AGREEMENT

THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT, # , is entered into by and between Cibola County,
New Mexico, hereinafter referred to as the "COUNTY," and Village of Milan (VOM]), New Mexico , a public
entity, hereinafter referred to as the "VILLAGE."

WHEREAS, the COUNTY is the agency; and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY desires to engage and the VILLAGE is willing to provide services of the Milan indoor
swimming pool to the residents of the COUNTY.

NOW THEREFORE, the COUNTY and the VILLAGE in consideration of mutual covenants and agreements herein
contained, do hereby agree as follows:

V.

pg. 1

Period of Agreement.

This Agreement shall become effective when signed by both parties and shall terminate on June 30, 2024,
unless terminated pursuant to Article VI, infra.

Statement of Work.

The VILLAGE shall provide the program of services as set forth in the scope of work which is attached hereto
as “EXHIBIT A — STATEMENT OF WORK” and incorporated herein by reference, unless amended or
terminated pursuant to Article VI, infra. in consideration for the provision of those services, the COUNTY
agrees to purchase, and the VILLAGE agrees to perform the services identified in the Statement of Work.

Limitation of Cost,

The total amount of the monies payable to the VILLAGE under this Agreement shall not exceed Seventy-Five
thousand doliars and no cents, $75,000.00. The annual budget for the swimming pool is attached hereto as
“EXHIBIT B — FINANCIAL INFORMATION SHEET” and incorporated herein by reference.

Payment.

The COUNTY shalt make quarterly payments to the VILLAGE for services and costs specified in “EXHIBIT B”
The VILLAGE shall submit certified and documented invoices and vouchers quarterly for expenses incurred to
the COUNTY. Invoices must include the agreement number for which services have been rendered. The
VILLAGE'S failure to submit such payment vouchers, invoices and supporting documentation within fifteen
days after they are due may result in the non-availability of funds for payment and/or the denial of payment
by the COUNTY. The payments should be made to Village of Milan P.O. Box 2727, Milan, NM 87021

Return of Funds.

Upon termination of this Agreement, or after the services provided for herein have been rendered, surplus
money, if any, shall be returned by the VILLAGE to the COUNTY.




V1.

Vil.

VIIL.

Xl.

XL

XL

pg. 2

Appropriations.

Performance under this Agreement is coﬁﬁngent upon sufficient appropriations and authorization being
made by the COUNTY for the performance of this agreement.

Termination of Agreement.

This agreement may be terminated by either of the parties hereto upon written notice delivered to the other
party at least thirty (30) days prior to the intended date of termination. By such termination, neither party
may nullify obligations already incurred for performance or failure to perform prior to the date of
termination. THE PROVISION IS NOT EXCLUSIVE AND DOES NOT WAIVE OTHER LEGAL RIGHTS AND REMEDIES
AFFORDED THE STATE IN SUCH CIRCUMSTANCES AS THE VILLAGE’S DEFAULT/BREACH OF CONTRACT.

Funds Accountability.

The parties shall provide for strict accountability of all monies made subject to this Agreement. The VILLAGE
shall maintain fiscal records, follow generally accepted accounting principles and account for all receipts and
disbursements of funds transferred to the VILLAGE pursuant to this Agreement. The VILLAGE will include all
monies made subject to this Agreement in the annual audit and will provide the COUNTY with a copy of the
annual audit.

Maintenance of Records.

The COUNTY shall maintain records as required of any administering state agency pursuant to applicable
state law and regulation. The VILLAGE shall maintain fiscal and programmatic records relative to those funds
and activities that have been made subject to this Agreement for a minimum of three years.

Confidentiality. !

Any confidential information provided to or developed by the VILLAGE in the performance of this Agreement
shall be kept confidential and shall not be made available to any individual or organization by the VILLAGE
without the prior written approval of the COUNTY or as required by a court of competent jurisdiction.

Amendments.

This Agreement shali not be altered, changed, or amended except by an instrument, in writing, executed and
approved by both parties.

Assignment.

The VILLAGE shall not assign or transfer any interest in this Agreement or assign any claims for money due or
to become due under this Agreement without the prior written approval of the COUNTY.

Applicable Law.

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the United States and the State of New Mexico.




Xiv.

XV.

XV,

XVIi.

XVIIL.

XIX.

pg. 3

Acquisition of Property.
The parties agree that neither party shall acquire any property as the result of this Agreement.
Liability.

Neither party waives or relinquishes any immunity or defense, including, without limitation, immunity under
the New Mexico Tort Claims Act Sections 41-4-1, et. seq., NMSA 1978, as amended; on behalf of itself, its
governing body members, trustees, officers, employees, and agents as a result of the performance under
this MOU. The Parties are solely and individually liable for the actions of the trustees, officers, employees,
and agents and no Party to this MOU shali be responsible for liability incurred as a result of the other Party’s
acts or omissions in connection with this MOU.

Execution of Documents.

The COUNTY and the VILLAGE agree to execute any document(s) necessary to implement the terms of this
Agreement.

Succession.
This agreement shall extend to and be binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties.
Sub-Contracts.

The VILLAGE shall be ultimately responsible for all items enumerated in the Statement of Work (Exhibit A) of
this Agreement. The VILLAGE shall seek advance approval from the COUNTY of all subcontracts, including
qualifications and job descriptions for any professional service sub-contract.

Equat Opportunity Compliance.

The VILLAGE agrees to abide by all federal and state laws and rules and regulations, and executive orders of
the Governor of the State of New Mexico, pertaining to equal employment opportunity. In accordance with
all such laws of the State of New Mexico, the VILLAGE agrees to assure that no person in the United States
shall, on the grounds of race, refigion, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, age, physical or mental handicap,
or serious medical condition, or, if the employer has fifty or more employees, spousal affiliation, or, if the
employer has fifteen or more employees, sexual orientation or gender identity, be excluded from
employment with or participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination
under any program or activity performed under this Agreement. If VILLAGE is found not to be in compliance
with these requirements during the life of this Agreement, VILLAGE agrees to take appropriate steps to
correct these deficiencies.




XX Workers’ Compensation.

The VILLAGE agrees to comply with state laws and rules applicable to workers’ compensation benefits for its
employees. if the VILLAGE fails to comply with the Workers’ Compensation Act and applicable rules when
required to do so, this Agreement may be terminated by the COUNTY.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the COUNTY and the VILLAGE have caused this Agreement to be executed, said
Agreement to become effective when signed by both parties.

VILLAGE: COUNTY:

Linda Cooke Village of Milan Manager Authorized Signatory

Date; Printed Title of Authorized Signatory
Date:

Village’s Legal Counsel - ' County’s Legal Counsel -

Certifying legal sufficiency Date: ¢ 7-24.24 23 Certifying legal sufficiency Date:

pg. 4




Pg. 5

EXHIBIT A - STATEMENT OF WORK
Scope of work

The public swimming pool located at 405 Airport Rd. Milan New Mexico has been in operation over 20
years. The swimming pool provides a quality-of-life activity for those in Milan, Grants, Cibola County, and
visitors from other cities, states, and countries. The swimming pool offers swimming lessons, lap
swimming, water aerobics (when available) pool parties, group swims as well as open swim times.
Funding will help cover the costs of utilities associated with the operation of the swimming pool as well as
improvements that are in the plans, such as handicap lift chair, new grating around the swimming pool.

Deliverables

® Provide valuable quality of life services.

s Work flexible schedule, including evenings or weekends.

* Provide schedules as updated and changed to allow for residents, and visitors to take partin
activities offered.

® Provide detailed counts of attendance at the swimming pool.

* Break down the visits by activity as well as residence.

¢  Maintain records as required.

¢ Perform other recruitment duties as assigned.

» Offer entry level positions to City, Village, and County residents.

@ Fitness and heaith benefits.

o Affordable entertainment.




Budget Listing
Account Number

Department: 1430 - Swimming Pool

101-1430-410200
101-1430-410300
101-1430-410400
101-1430-410500
101-1430-420100
101-1430-420200
101-1430-420300
101-1430-420500
101-1430-420600
101-1430-420700
101-1430-420800
101-1430-430101
1(1-1430-430200
101-1430-440100
101-1430-440300
101-1430-44040C
101-1430-440401
101-1420-450300
101-1430-459000
101-1430-460100
101-1430-460200
101-1430-460300
101-1430-460400
101-1430-463000
101-1430-465010
101-1430-470400
101-1430-470500
101-1430-470800
101-1430-471300
101-1430-471400
101-1430-471500
101-1430-471610
101-1430-471620
101-1430-471630
101-1430-472100
101-1430-472200
101-1430-480200

pE. &

Finagncial Information Sheet

Account Name

EXHIBIT B

Full-Time Positions 73,000.00
Part-Time Positions 82,000.00
Yemporary Posttions 0.00
Overtime 3,000.00
FICA - Sacial Security 10,000.00
FICA - Medicare 2,40C.00
Retirement Contributions 7,200.00
Health Insurance 5,200.00
Retiree Health Care 1,500.00
Unemployment Insurance 3C0.00
Workers' Compensation [Assess Fee) £60.00
Tuition Reimbursement 0.00
Per Diem 1,500.00
Maintenance Building/Structure 5,000.00
Maintenance Grounds/Roadways 508.00
Maintenance Veh/Furn/Fixtures/Equip 6,500.00
Maintenance /Furn/Fixtures/Equipment 0.00
Professional Services 2,500.00
Other Contractual Services 200.00
Supplies (Office/Field/Education} 150.00
Non-Capital Furniture/Fixture/Equiprment 1,500.00
Safety Equipment 1,000.00
Uniform/Linen Expense 500.00
Cther Supplies 2,000.c0
Other Supplies - Water Chernicals 25,000.60
Employee Training 3,000.00
Insurance 1,500.00
Printing/Publishing/Advertising 100.00
Refunds/Relmbursements 500.00
Subscriptions & Dues 150.00
Telephons 1,100.00
Utilities - Electric 16,000.00
Utiitties - Gas 45,000.00
Utilities - Water 12,000.00
Workers' Compensation Premiums 1,700.00
Theft/Loss Expense 0.00
Equipment & Machinery 0.00

Total Department: 1430 - Swimming Pool: 313,060.00




10d. New Busmess

Intergovernmental

Agreement (IGA)

Rockin 66 Express-$51,917




INTERGOVERNMENTAL
AGREEMENT

THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT, # , Is entered into by and between Cibola County,
New Mexico, hereinafter referred to as the "COUNTY," and Rockin 66 Express , New Mexico , @ public entity,
hereinafter referred to as the "ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS."

WHEREAS, the COUNTY is the agency; and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY desires to engage and the ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS is willing to provide ser\nces of the
regional transit to the residents in the service area within the COUNTY.

NOW THEREFORE, the COUNTY and the ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS in consideration of mutual covenants and
agreements herein contained, do hereby agree as follows:

pg. 1

Period of Agreement.

This Agreement shall become effective when signed by both parties and shalf terminate on June 30, 2024,
unless terminated pursuant to Article V11, infra.

Statement of Work.

The ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS shall provide the program of services as set forth in the scope of work which is
attached hereto as “EXHIBIT A — STATEMENT OF WORK” and incorporated herein by reference, unless
amended or terminated pursuant to Article VIi, infra. In consideration for the provision of those services, the
COUNTY agrees to purchase, and the ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS agrees to provide the services identified in the
Statement of Work.

Limitation of Cost.

The total amount of the monies payable to the ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS under this Agreement shall not exceed
Fifty-one thousand nine hundred and seventeen dollars and no cents, $51,917.00. The annual budget is
attached hereto as “EXHIBIT B — FINANCIAL INFORMATION SHEET” and incorporated herein by reference.

Payment.

The COUNTY shall make quarterly payments to the ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS for services and costs specified in
“EXHIBIT B.” The ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS shall submit certified and documented invoices and vouchers quarterly
for expenses incurred to the COUNTY. Invoices must include the agreement number for which services have
been rendered. The ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS’S failure to submit such payment vouchers, invoices and supporting
documentation within fifteen days after they are due may result in the non-availability of funds for payment

and/or the denial of payment by the COUNTY. The payments should be made to Rockin 66 Express P.O. Box
2727, Milan, NM 87021

Return of Funds.

Upon termination of this Agreement, or after the services provided for herein have been rendered, surplus
money, if any, shall be returned by the ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS to the COUNTY.




PE.

V%L

VII.

VI

Xl

Xil.

Appropriations.

Performance under this Agreement is contingent upon sufficient appropriations and authorization being
made by the COUNTY for the performance of this agreement.

Termination of Agreement.

This agreement may be terminated by either of the parties hereto upon written notice delivered to the other
party at least thirty (30} days prior to the intended date of termination. By such termination, neither party
may nullify obligations already incurred for performance or failure to perform prior to the date of
fermination. THE PROVISION IS NOT EXCLUSIVE AND DOES NOT WAIVE OTHER LEGAL RIGHTS AND REMEDIES
AFFORDED THE STATE IN SUCH CIRCUMSTANCES AS THE ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS’S DEFAULT/BREACH OF
CONTRACT.

Funds Accountability.

The parties shall provide for strict accountability of all monies made subject to this Agreement. The ROCKIN
66 EXPRESS shall maintain fiscal records, follow generally accepted accounting principles and account for all
receipts and disbursements of funds transferred to the ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS pursuant to this Agreement. The
ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS will include all monies made subject to this Agreement in the annual audlt and W|H
providé the COUNTY with a copy of the anntal audit.” T -

Maintenance of Records.

The COUNTY shall maintain records as required of any administering state agency pursuant to applicable
state law and regulation. The ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS shall maintain fiscal and programmatic records relative to
those funds and activities that have been made subject to this Agreement for a minimum of three years,
Confidentiality.

Any confidential information provided to or developed by the ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS in the performance of this
Agreement shall be kept confidential and shall not be made available to any individual or organization by the
ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS without the prior written approval of the COUNTY or as required by a court of
competent jurisdiction.

Amendments.

This Agreement shall not be altered, changed, or amended except by an instrument, in writing, executed and
approved by both parties.

Assignment.

The ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS shall not assign or transfer any interest in this Agreement or assign any claims for
money due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior written approval of the COUNTY,




XiiL

Xiv.

XV.

XVIL,

Xvill.

XiX.

pg. 3

Applicable Law.

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the United States and the State of New Mexico.
Acquisition of Property.

The parties agree that neither party shall acquire any property as the result of this Agreement.
Liability.

Neither party waives or relinquishes any immunity or defense, including, without limitation, immunity under
the New Mexico Tort Claims Act Sections 41-4-1, et. seq., NMSA 1978, as amended; on behalf of itself, its
governing body members, trustees, officers, employees, and agents as a result of the performance under
this MOU. The Parties are solely and individually liable for the actions of the trustees, officers, employees,
and agents and no Party to this MOU shall be responsible for liability incurred as a result of the other Party’s
acts or omissions in connection with this MOU.

Execution of Bocuments.

The COUNTY and the ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS agree to execute any document(s) necessary to implement the
terms of this Agreement.

Succession.
This agreement shall extend to and be binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties.

Sub-Contracts.

The ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS shall be ultimately responsible for all items enumerated in the Statement of Work
(Exhibit A) of this Agreement. The ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS shall seek advance approval from the COUNTY of all
subcontracts, including qualifications and job descriptions for any professional service subcontract.

Equal Opportunity Compliance.

The ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS agrees to abide by all federal and state laws and rules and regulations, and
executive orders of the Governor of the State of New Mexico, pertaining to equal employment opportunity.
In accordance with all such laws of the State of New Mexico, the ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS agrees to assure that
no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, age
physical or mental handicap, or serious medical condition, or, if the employer has fifty or more employees,
spousal affiliation, or, if the employer has fifteen or more employees, sexual orientation or gender identity,
be excluded from employment with or participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected
to discrimination under any program or activity performed under this Agreement. If ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS is
found not to be in compliance with these requirements during the life of this Agreement, ROCKIN 66
EXPRESS agrees to take appropriate steps to correct these deficiencies.

el




pg. 4

Workers’ Compensation.

The ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS agrees to comply with state laws and rules applicable to workers” compensation
benefits for its employees. If the ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS fails to comply with the Workers’ Compensation Act
and applicable rules when required to do so, this Agreement may be terminated by the COUNTY.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the COUNTY and the ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS have caused this Agreement to be
executed, said Agreement to become effective when signed by both parties.

ROCKIN 66 EXPRESS:

Melissa Chavez Rockin 66 Express Director

Date:

Tl SN

Village of Milan’s Legal Counsel —
On Behalf of Rockin 66 Express
Certifying legal sufficiency Date:

&% 2. 2423

COUNTY:

Authorized Signatory

Printed Title of Authorized Signatory

Date:

County’s Legal Counsel -

Certifying legal sufficiency Date:




EXHIBIT A — STATEMENT OF WORK
SCOPE OF WORK

The Rockin 66 Express program will provide the Village of Milan, City of Grants, and communities of Cibola
County with a coordinated, accessible, and affordable curb-to-curb transit system, providing access to health
care, shopping, education, employment, and public recreational services.

Our program will meet the needs of our passengers by providing timely, affordable, responsible, and safe
services provided by professionally qualified staff’ The agency will provide effective, professional, and
compelent management to assure that services are both efficient and cost effective. The safety of everyone
will be our first and foremost consideration.

All personnel are responsible for ensuring the safety of passengers, employees, property, and all of those
exposed to the system. This responsibility includes the right to cease any operation(s) which is determined
to be hazardous or creating an unsafe condition. It is the duty and obligation of each Rockin 66 Express
employee to provide any information necessary to ensure the safest possible transportation services to the
residents of Cibola County.

og. 5




EXHIBIT B

FINANCIAL INFORMATION SHEET

Account Number
532-0000-360300
532-0000-360600
532-0000-360800
532-0000-361001
532-0000-351002
532-0000-361003
532-0000-372303
532-0000-399980
532-0010-389940
532-0010-399981
532-1200-410200
532-1300-410300
532-1300-410500
532-1300-420100
532-1300-420200
532-1300-420300
532-1300-420500
532-1300-420600
532-1300-420700
532-1300-420800
532-1300-430200
532-1300-440400
532-1300-450100
532-1300-450300
532-1300-455005
532-1300-46040Q
532-1300-470600
532-1300-470800
532-1300-471200
532-1300-471500
532-1300-471610
532.1300-471620
532-1300-471630
532-1300-480700
532-1300-544100
532-1350-410200
532-1350-410500
532-1350-420100
532-1350-420200
532-1350-420300
532-1350-420500
532-1350-420600
532-1350-420700
532-1350-420800
532-1350-421500
532-1350-430301
532-1350-440401
532-1350-459005
532-1350-460102
532-1350-460400

pg. 6

Account Name

Interest Income
Reimbursements/Refunds
Revenue State

Revenue Local Entities
Revenue Fares and Other

Sale of Fixed Assets
Undesignated

Transfers In

Transfer out

Transfers Out

Full-Time Positions

Part-Time Pesitions

Owvertime

FICA - Social Security

FICA - Medicare

Retirement Contributions
Health Insurance

Retiree Health Care
Unemployment [nsurance
Workers' Compensation (Assess Fee)
Per Diem

Maintanance Veh/Furn/Fixtures/Equip
Audit Contract

Professional Services/Physicals
Other Contractual Serv/Rent
Uniform/Linen Expense
Insurance
Printing/Publishing/Advertsing
Rent of Equipment/Machinery
Telephone

Utllities - Electric

Utilities - Gas

Utilities - Water

Vehicles

Supplies - Office Supplies
Full-Time Positions

Overtime

FICA - Social Security

FICA - Medicara

Retirement Contributions
Heazlth Insurance

Retiree Health Care
Unemployment Insurance
Workers' Compensation (Assess Fee)
Workers Compensation
Transportation Expense - Fuel
Maintenance Vehicle/Equipment
Cther Contractual Serv/Rent
Supplies Office - Shop
Uniform/Linen Expense

Report Total:

FY 2023 - 2024
FY 24 Final

0.00
110,000.00

271,336.44
118,216.00
8,000.00
0.00
0.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
0.00
50,000.00
0.00
0.00
3,100.00
864.30
5,000.00
10,400.00
1,000.00
1,000.00
10.00
2,00C.00
C.00
1,006.00
3,500.00
0.00

0.00

7,000.00
2,000.00
3,000.00
4,000.00
2,000.00
1,500.00
1,500.00
155,000.00
1,600.00
103,975.00
2,000.00
6,300.00
1,900.00
7,350.00
15,100.00
1,650.0C
1,500.00
60.00
0.00
35,000.00
15,122.00
8,000.00
0.00
1,000.00
53,121.14




10e. New Business

Proclamation

NM Nurse Practitioner Week (November 12-18,
2023)




5@}& E[/g/@

Cibola County Commission Clb Ola COllllty

Daniel J. Torrez, Chairman 700 E. Roosevelt Ave., Suite 50

Martha Garcia, 1st Vice-Chair Grants, New Mexico 87020

Christine Lowery, 2nd Vice-Chair Phone (505) 287-9431 — Fax (505) 285-5434
Ralph Lucero, Commissioner Kate Fletcher
Robert Windhorst, Commissioner County Manager

Proclamation in Support of the New Mexico Nurse Practitioner Council Celebrating
National Nurse Practitioner Week (November 12-18, 2023) and the Valuable
Contributions Nurse Practitioners Make Every Day Serving the Citizens of New Mexico.

WHEREAS, Nurse Practitioners play a critical role in the healthcare system of Cibola County and across New Mexico,
providing high-quality, patient-centered care in a variety of settings, including primary care practices, hospitals, clinics,
and long-term care facilities across the lifespan; and

WHEREAS, Nurse Practitioners are highly trained licensed professionals who have completed rigorous education and
clinical training, including a master's or doctoral degree in nursing and national certification in their area of
specialization; and

WHEREAS, New Mexico has been a leader in recognizing the importance of Nurse Practitioners and granted them full
scope authority to practice to the full extent of their education and training; without the need for physician oversight or
collaborative practice agreements, which has improved access to care and increased healthcare efficiency; and

WHEREAS, there are more than 290,000 licensed Nurse Practitioners in the United States, with over 3,000 practicing in
the state of New Mexico alone, making up nearly one-third of all advanced practice registered nurses in the state; and

WHEREAS, Nurse Practitioners are providing care to an increasingly diverse patient population, with nearly 20% of all
Nurse Practitioners providing care in rural and underserved areas, and over 20% providing care to Medicaid and
Medicare beneficiaries; and

WHEREAS, Nurse Practitioners are vital to addressing the growing demand for primary care services, with over 1 billion
visits to Nurse Practitioners each year, and an estimated 1 in 5 Americans receiving care from a nurse practitioner
annually; and

WHEREAS, Nurse Practitioners play a vital role in improving access to healthcare services, particularly in underserved
and rural areas where there may be a shortage of healthcare providers; and

WHEREAS, Nurse Practitioners are helping to improve health outcomes and reduce healthcare costs, with studies
showing that Nurse Practitioners provide care that is comparable in quality and outcomes to physician-led care, while
also reducing emergency department visits and hospital readmissions; and

WHEREAS, Nurse Practitioners are committed to promoting health and preventing illness, and work tirelessly to educate
patients and their families about healthy lifestyle choices and disease prevention strategies; and

WHEREAS, the New Mexico Nurse Practitioner Council is a professional organization that represents Nurse Practitioners

across the state and advocates for policies and initiatives that support the advancement and recognition of Nurse
Practitioners in New Mexico;

Page 10of2



Now, therefore, we, the Cibola County Commissioners, do hereby proclaim November 12-18, 2023, as
National Nurse Practitioners Week in Cibola County, and we express our support for the New Mexico Nurse
Practitioner Council in their efforts to advocate and support Nurse Practitioners and the patients they serve.

The Cibola County Commissioners recognizes the significant contributions of Nurse Practitioners to the health
and wellbeing of our community, and we call on all citizens to recognize their critical role in the healthcare
system of Cibola County and across New Mexico.

The Cibola County Commissioners commends the New Mexico Nurse Practitioner Council for their feadership
and dedication to advancing the nursing profession and improving access to quality healthcare in our state.

The Cibola County Commissioners urge all citizens to join us in celebrating National Nurse Practitioners Week
and in recognizing the vital role that Nurse Practitioners play in providing high-quality, accessible, and cost-
effective care to residents of Cibola County and across New Mexico.

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 28t day of September 2023.
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

DANIEL TORREZ, CHAIRMAN MARTHA GARCIA, 157 VICE-CHAIR

CHRISTINE LOWERY, 28 VICE-CHAIR ROBERT WINDHORST, COMMISSIONER

RaALPH LUCERQ, COMMISSIONER

ATTEST BY:

MICHELLE E. DOMINGUEZ, C1BCLA COUNTY CLERK

Page 2 of 2



R, bl L
Y % %5
-' .'-’_ < = e

¥
A N

10f.(a) New
Business

Requisitions Over
520,000

Vehicle Radio Pkg/ Special Comm/Sheriff’s
Dept.

$24,743.47




REQUISITION ORDER

COMMISSION APPROVAL. IF USING STATE CONTRACT PLEASE LIST CONTRACT # ABOVE AS WELL AS THE FIRST
SENT BACK

DLEACE REMETRER ARV Bt eI MR e I om e T EERRNNNIEE ————————. S ———
PLEASE REMEMBER ANY REQUISITIONS OVER $500.00 NOW REQUIRE 3 HARD QUOTES. ANY REQUISTION $10,000.00 OR MORE WILL NEED TO GO ON THE AGENDA FOR

%\“ E gy DATE : DEP?:TI::ENT: QUDOTf OI?ATQ;TED BY:
; eri ustin Middleton
{\;\ : ' % e gy QUOTE #1 QUOTE #2 QUOTE #3
Ul /3 VENDOR NAME:|Specialty Communications
: CONTACT NAME: |John Choc
vt PHONE:|505-294-6100
N ® wenasy FAX:|505-298-2600
NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT COST EXTENSION UNIT COST EXTENSION UNIT COST | EXTENSION
*****Vehicle Radio Package with in bank Repeater - - -
3 |NX-5700HBF9110W,13-174 MHz0 RF Deck 1592.99 4,778.97 = -
3 |KCH-20 Full Control Head 472.99 1,418.97 -
3 |NX-5700BK 50 Watt Radio used for Repeater 568.40 1,705.20 - -
3 [KCT-23M4 DC Cable (75/110W) 23ft 42.56 127.68 - -
3 [KCT-23M3 DC Cable (35/50W remote mount 42.56 127.68 - -
23ft; neg 3.3 ft leads) - - -
6 |KCT-71M2 Remote Control Cable (17ft) 55.44 332.64 - -
3 |KRK-15BM Control Head Remote Kit for a 50watt 39.41 118.23 - -
RF Deck -
3 |KMB-33M Standard Mounting Bracket 50 watt radio 11.06 33.18 - -
3 |KMB-36 Mounting Bracket for 110 radio 59.36 178.08 -
3 |KES-540 Watt 4 inch speaker 47.39 142.17 -
3 |KMC-65 Microphone 41.16 123.48
3 |Pyramid BRF-1604 Pre-selector 150-174 MHz 297.50 892.50 - -
3 |Pyramid BRF-1602*Dual Notch Filter150-174MHz Rd ~ 297.50 892.50 - -
3 |Double Shielded Coax jumper kits for Pyramid 50.00 150.00 - -
Pre-selector and duela notch filter. - - -
3 |Repeater Cable 100.00 300.00 - -
6 |Mounting hardware, screws, tie wraps & wire conn 5.00 54.00 - -
3 |Spike Antenna Kit(Antenna, Coax & Connector) 48.50 145.50
3 |Hi-Gain Antenna Kit(Antenna, Coax & Connector 66.00 198.00 - -
***Hand Helds*** - - -
S5 |NX-5200K2 VHF {136-174MHz), 6.0 watts standard 650.86 3,254.30
5 __|KNB-L3M Li-ion 3400mAh(high capacity) 141.75 708.75 - -
SUBTOTAL FOR SELECTED ITEMS 15,681.83 ~ -
TOTAL LABOR/ SERVICE COSTS - -
TOTAL GROSS RECEIPTS TAX -
TOTAL SHIPPING/ FREIGHT COSTS - - =
GRAND TOTAL 15,681.83 -
REASON SELECTED STATE CONTRACT <:]
VENDOR Specialty Communications
CONTRACT/BID/RFP # 10-00000-20-00066
ADDRESS PO Box 23277 ESTIMATED DELIVERY
Albuguerque NM 87192 __PURCHASE ORDER #
i‘é:ﬁ; ASIIE CERTIFICATION FUND NAME & LINE ITEM # AMOUNT
ENDORSEME With my signature, | hereby certify that all If a[l.three signatures are not | Continue to next page
goods/services requested are QEL-SEIVAGN obtained the purchase cannot
properly conduct the operations of this move forward
department, and that all procurement has
been conducted according to purchasing
policies approved by the Cibola County DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE DESIGNEE SIGNATURE FINANCE SIGNATURE
Board of Commissioners.

4 PAGES OF THE STATE CONTRACT, OTHERWISE IT WILL BE




REQUISITION ORDER

o [ [’Z/ DATE : DEPARTMENT: ‘ QUOTE OBTAINED BY:
% Ax L ,ﬁ Sheriff Dustin Middleton
Py #7 | September 22,2023 QUOTE #1 QUOTE #2 QUOTE #3
L

VENDOR NAME:|Specialty Communications
CONTACT NAME:|John Choc
PHONE:|505-294-6100

uew mEkiGe - rmr. vwas FAX:|505-298-2600
NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT COST EXTENSION UNIT COST EXTENSION UNIT COST | EXTENSION
1 |Total from Page #1 of Requisition 15681.83 15,681.83 5 :
**Hand Held's Continued.. - - =
5 [KSC-52BK Rapid Charger 68.11 340.55 - -
5 |KRA-25 High gain VHF helically loaded whip 27.09 135.45 = .
antenna 148-162 MHz List Price - & -
5 |KMC-72WMil-Spec, IP54/55/67 Noise cancelling spe 78.89 394.45 - s
**Replacement Speaker System Microwave Ridge - g -
1 [NXR-1700E VHF Repeater; VHF; 1726.20 1,726.20 -
136-174MHz; 25-50W - - -
1 |NXR-1800E2 Link Remote Base, Digital, UHF; 1726.20 1,726.20 - -
400-470MHz; 1-40W £ .
1 |[KSGMS10010 NXR-1800 Remote Base 288.19 288.19 - =
Conversion Kit - & 2
1 __|DURA COMM Power Supply with Switching 1100.00 1,100.00 . z .

Battery maintence and low voltage disconnect = -
Durhe 1 u-5012-BMS - - -

Repeater Controller Cable 100.00 100.00 - -
1 |KPG-D7N Programming Software 78.19 78.19 - -
SUBTOTAL FOR SELECTED ITEMS 21,571.06 - =
TOTAL LABOR/ SERVICE COSTS 2,945.00 - -
TOTAL GROSS RECEIPTS TAX 227.41 -
TOTAL SHIPPING/ FREIGHT COSTS = = i
GRAND TOTAL 24,743.47 = =
REASON SELECTED STATE CONTRACT <:l
VENDOR Specialty Communications
CONTRACT/BID/RFP # 10-00000-20-00066
ADDRESS PO BOX 23277 ESTIMATED DELIVERY

Albuguerque NM 87192 PURCHASE ORDER #
PURCHASING ™ ST :
: GEN?‘“ G CERTIFICATION FUND NAME & LINE ITEM # AMOUNT

With my signature, | hereby BGIRGETE | If all three signatures are not
goods/services requested are Q=R IR obtained the purchase cannot
properly conduct the operations of this | move forward | 649-200-400-00108 - ARPA 19,008.98

department, and that all procurement has |401-005-408-00793-Radio Comm $5,734.49

been conducted according to purchasing
policies approved by the Cibola County DESIGNEE SIGNATURE FINANCE SIGNATURE

Board of Commissioners.

ENDORSEMENT

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE

PLEASE REMI NV REQUISITIONS OVER $500.,00 NG QUOTES. ANY REQUISTION. $10,000.00 OR MORE WILL NEED TO GO ON THE AGENDA FOR
COMMISSION APPROVAL. IF USING STATE CONTRACT PLEASE LIST CONTRACT # ABOVE AS WELL AS THE FIRST 4 PAGES OF THE STATE CONTRACT, OTHERWISE [T WILL BE
SENT BACK

ML



SPECIALTY COMMUNICATIONS

Quotation

Quote Number:

5892
P.O. Box 23277
Albuquerque, NM 87192 Quote Date:
Sep 20, 2023
Page:
Quoted to; 1
Cibola County
Attn:Account Payables od
700 E. Roosevelt Ave. Ste 50 ﬁzzni §0§?§9§?§6§30°
Grants, NM 87020 E-Mail specialtycom@zaol.com
l Good Thru Payment Terms Sales Rep
‘ 10/20/23 Net 10th of Next Month jc
Quantity Description Unit Price Extension T
1.00 ™ Vehicle Radio Package with in band repeater ***
3.00 NX-5700HBF (110W, 136-174 MHz) RF Deck Only List 1.592.99 4.778.97
Price $2275.00
3.00 KCH-20 Full Control Head Only List Price $675.70 47299 1,418.97
3.00 NX-5700BK 50 Watt Radio used for Repeater Only List 568.40 1.705.20 | o
Price $812 3
3.00 KCT-23M4 DC Cable (75/11 OW) 23 feet Only List Price 4256 127.68 | =
$ 60.80 &
3.00 KCT-23M3 DC Cable (35-50W Remote mount; pos.23 42 56 127.68 | &
ft.; neg. 3.3. ft. leads) Only List Price $60.80 §
6.00 KCT-71M2 Remote Control Cable (17 feet) Only List 5544 332.64 8
Price $ 79.20
3.00 | KRK-15BM Control Head Remote Kit for a 50 watt RF 39.41 11823 1~
Deck Only List Price $56.30 |
3.00 KMB-33M Standard Mounting Bracket 50 watt radio 11.06 3318, Q
Only List Price $15.80 &
3.00 KMB-36 Mounting Bracket for 110 radio Only List Price 59.38 178.08 F‘Q
$84.80 ¥
3.00 KES-5 40 Watt 4 inch speaker Only List Price $67.70 47.39 14217 | D
3.00 KMGC-65 Microphone Only List Price $ 58.80 41.16 123.48 %
3.00 Pyramid BPF-1604 Pre-selector 150-174 Only 297 .50 892.50 |\
3.00 Pyramid BRF-1602* Dual Notch Filter, 150-174 MHz, / 297 50 892.50
Requires 2 MHz separation (Factory Tuned) Only
3.00 Double shieided Coax jumper kits for Pyramid 50.00 150.00
Pre-selector and and dual notch fijter, :
3.00 Repeater Cable 100.00 300.00
6.00 Mounting Hardware, screws, tie wraps & wire 9.00 54.00
connectors ]
RESTOCKING FLE. SALES Ty i S et 1o az0%, Subtotal Continued
CHANGE. .
Sales Tax Continued
sy ' TOTAL Continued
Signature m Rﬂi




SPECIALTY COMMUNICATIONS

Quotation

Quote Number:

5892
P.0O. Box 23277
Albuquerque, NM 87192 Quote Date:
Sep 20, 2023
Page:
Quoted to: 2
Cibola County
Attn:Account Payables g4
700 E. Roosevelt Ave, Ste 50 ?;;2“: §O§9§9§?§6§é°°
Grants, NM 87020 E-Mail specialtycomBasl.com
Good Thru Payment Terms Sales Rep
10/20/23 Net 10th of Next Month ic N,
Quantity Description Unit Price Extension :"&g
ﬂ&‘-‘
3.00 SPIKE ANTENNA KIT (ANTENNA, COAX AND 48 .50 145.50 ﬁ
CONNECTOR) £
3.00 HI-GAIN ANTENNA KIT (Antenna, Coax & Conn ector) 66.00 198.00 | =™
3.00 | Labor 760.00 2,280.00 | &
3.00 | TAXON LABOR ONLY 58.90 176.70 | N
1.00 *** Hand Held's *** b
5.00 NX-5200K2 VHF (136-174MHz), 6.0 Watts Standard 650.86 3.254.30 )
Key pad List Price $929.80 LY
5.00 KNB-L3M Li-ion 3400mAh (High Capacity) List Price 141.75 708.75| ¢
$202.50 O~
5.00 KSC-52BK RAPID CHARGER List Price $97.30 68.11 340.55 ‘Q\
5.00 KRA-25 High gain VHF helically ioaded whip antenna 27.09 135.45 N
148-162 MHz List Price $38.70 ﬁ
5.00 KMC-72wW MIL-SPEC, IP54/55/67 Noise-cancelling 78.89 394 .45 ’2
Speaker Mic List Price $112.70 _—
1.00 *** Replacement repsater system Microwave Ridge *** \
1.00 NXR-1700E VHF Repeater, VHF, 136-174MHz, 1.726.20 1.728.20 \j
25-50W List Price $2466.00
1.00 | NXR-1800E2 Link Remote Base, Digital, UHF, 1,726.20 172620 ™y
400-470MHz, 1-40W List Price $2466.00 A
1.00 KSGMS10010 NXR-1800 Remote Base Conversion 288.19 288.19 -
Kit. List Price $411.70 B
1.00 DURA COMM POWER SUPPLY WITH SWITCHING 1.100.00 1.100.00 ?
BATTERY MAINTENANCE AND LOW VOLTAGE Gy
DISCONNECT. Durhe1 u-5012-BMS >
1.00 Repeatsr controller cable : 100.00 100.00| =~
1.00 KPG-D7N Programming Software List Price $111.70 78.19 78.19 F
7.00 TECHNICAL SERVICE Phone CALLs Including After 95.00 665.00 g
<
) . .
RESTOOKING FEE. AL Lot i S BIECT TO AZ0%, Subtotal Continued |- e~
CHANGE. Sales Tax Continued %E\
-l TOTAL Continued
Signature M—‘@ R L




SPECIALTY COMMUNICATIONS
P.O. Box 23277
Albuquerque, NM 87192

Quoted to:
Cibola County
Attn:Account Payables
700 E. Roosevelt Ave. Ste 50
Grants, NM 87020

Quotation

Phone # 505-294-6100
Fax # 505-29%8-2600

Quote Number:

5892

Quote Date:
Sep 20, 2023

Page:

3

E-Mail specialtycomRacl.com

Payment Terms Sales Rep

r Good Thru

10/20/23 Net 10th of Next Month jic

Quantity Description

Unit Price

Extension

hours on Sunday.
1.00 TAX ON LABOR ONLY

State of NM Price Agreement
10-00000-20-00066 AN

NASPO #00318

Expires Dec 31, 2026

FO.

equipment”.

their paperwork from now on, =**

*** Vehicle Installs ***

system,

*** PLEASE NOTE: All Part numbers must be on your
For example, NX-5200 K2 not NX Radio or Radic

The Government suditors require that as part be part of
Install to be done at Specialty Communications.
Assemble, program, test and custom install new radio

Customer to provide Escutcheon for KCH-20 Control
head fo match vehicle equipment console.

50.71

50.71

RETURNS ON SPECIAL ORDERS WILL BE SUBJECT TO A 20%

RESTOCKING FEE, SALES TAX IS ONLY AN ES TIMATE AND S UBJECT Subtotal

CHANGE.

Signature m &7

Sales Tax

TOTAL

24.743 .47

24,743.47

]



Cibola County, NM

Account Name

401 - GENERAL FUND
Expense
401-005-408-00793 Radio Communication Equipment

Expense Totals:
401 - GENERAL FUND Totals:

649 - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT
Expense
649-200-400-00108 Law Enforcement

Expense Totals:
649 - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT Totals:
Report Total:

Detail vs Budget Report

Account Summary
Date Range: 07/01/2023 - 09/22/2023

Encumbrances Fiscal Budget  Beginning Balance Total Activity Ending Balance Budget Remaining % Remaining

0.00 5,735.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,735.00 100.00 %

0.00 5,735.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,735.00 100.00 %

0.00 5,735.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,735.00 100.00 %

350,702.36 380,642.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 29,938.64 7.87 %
350,702.36 380,642.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 29,939.64

350,702.36 380,642.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 29,939.64 7.87%

350,702.36 386,377.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 35,674.64 9.23%

9/22/2023 11:59:38 AM

Page 1 of 2



	8-31-2023 Finance Report with Notes.pdf
	Public Comment Procedures
	Cibola County �Commission Meeting
	Slide Number 3
	Finance Updates
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Monthly Question
	Slide Number 9


